





Jasper County Board of Commissioners
October 4, 2021
Regular Meeting Minutes
6:00 P.M.
Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman, Gerald Stunkel, Vice-Chairman, Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones

and Steven Ledford.

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, and David Ozburn, County Attorney.

Pledge of Allegiance:

Invocation: Jasper County Charter School Superintendent Kenny Garland

Agenda Approval: Commissioner Stunkel motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Commissioner
Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.

Item 1: Joint Development Authority Revenue Sharing Agreement: David Ozburn gave an update of

where we are with the JDA. Jasper County was in a unique position since it does not have any soil in the area
for the JDA. The 2016 JDA Revenue Agreement stated that the BOC and the BOE would come up with an
agreement on how funds will be disbursed.

Chairman Henry stated that the two boards came together on September 17" to come up with an agreement. The
two boards decided on a 60/40 split. BOC will get 60% and the BOE will get 40%.

Commissioner Ledford motioned to authorize Chairman Henry to sign the Intergovernmental Contract
regarding JDA Revenue received by Jasper County, Georgia between the parties, Jasper County Board of
Commissioners and the Jasper County Board of Education. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion,
passed unanimously.

Item 2: Redistricting: Chairman Henry stated that the redistricting process is going on right now. We would
like to keep the BOE districts in line with the Board of Commissioners districts to lessen any confusion.

Recess

Commissioner Stunkel motioned to go into recess. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed
unanimously.

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to go back into session. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed
unanimously.

Consent Agenda:
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to approve the minutes for September 13, 2021 and September 17, 2021 as

presented. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to approve Check Register Check #s- 62636-62739. Commissioner Ledford
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.

Public Hearing: None

Presentations/Delegations- Commissioner Jones read aloud the Proclamation for St. John CME church.

Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes October 4, 2021 - Regular Meeting



Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the proclamation. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion,
passed unanimously.

Citizens Comments:
Sandra Carter- Ms. Carter stood before the board to say thank you for the proclamation for St. John CM.E
Church.

County Commissioner’s Items:

Commissioner Ledford- None

Commissioner Stunkel- None

Commissioner Jernigan- None

Commissioner Jones- None

Chairman Henry- Chairman Henry made everyone aware that the Food Bank received the CDBG grant. He
stated that he met with Ken Horton and they are getting the wheels rolling on the project.

Regular Agenda:

Item 3: C&D Landfill- Five Year Design & Operational Plan Update- TPE Fee Proposal: Mike Benton
introduced Tony Rodriguez of Triple Point Engineering. Mr. Rodriguez gave the five year update. He stated
that all solid waste landfills are required to update every five years. The deadline for the renewal is January 31,
2022. The existing D &O plan has to be updated with the current topography. Everything in the plan has to be
updated to the current requirements. Once the D & O is updated and submitted the EPD will review it and
approve it. It takes them a while to review the plans. We will work under the current plan until the update is
approved.

Commissioner Stunkel motioned to authorize Chairman Henry to sign Triple Point Engineering’s Scobe of
Services and Fee Proposal for the Five Year Design & Operational Plan Updated as presented. Commissioner
Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.

Item 4: 2022 LMIG Project & Application: Chairman Henry stated that we have money coming in and we
have to decide which road we will work on.

Robert Jordan stood before the board to share information about our Road Ranking System. Based on our
system Jackson Lake Road has the most serious need. It needs widening, and paving. The shoulders are
deteriorating.

Mike Benton suggested that the board approve Jackson Lake Road as the project for the LMIG.

Commissioner Jernigan stated that if we know that it is going to take two years of LMIG we should do the
approval now for both LMIG years.

Commissioner Stunkel motioned to assign the section of Jackson Lake Road from SR 11 North to SR 212 West
as the project for the 2022 LMIG Program with Jordan Engineering developing cost estimates with resurfacing
and widening options and presenting back to the BOC. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed
unanimously.

Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes October 4, 2021 — Regular Meeting



Item 5: FY 2021 Year End Budget Amendments: Dennis Pate stood before the board to present a request for
year-end budget amendments for the Planning and Zoning Department. Planning and Zoning department
experienced increased expenses for professional services as a result of the increasing volume of building
permits. However, the increased expense is offset by increased revenues received by the planning and zoning
department during FY2021.

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve FY 2021 budget amendment for Planning and Zoning as presented.
Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.

Item 6: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings: The board has a Work Session scheduled for Monday,
October 25, 2021 for CIE Update Discussion and JDA Fund Planning.

County Attorney Items:

None, but would like an Executive Session for potential litigation.

County Manager Items: Mike Benton stated that we have our new Senior Center Director. Pittman stated that
they plan to start next Wednesday. Once they have completed Post Road they will move to Pintail. Right away
tree limbing will be done by a local company as a trial. They will be working on Jackson Lake Road in one of

the worst areas that need attention. They are looking at October 21-22.

Michael Walsh stated that they have signage up in Lakeview Estates.

Mike Benton stated that the issue with the siren on Pintail was a computer chip. The chip has been replaced.
New Construction permits for the last month were 24 new home permit. Total permits for September were 67.

Executive Session: None

Adjourn:
Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn the meeting at 6:47 p.m. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the

motion, passed unanimously.

Bruce Henry, Chairman

Sharon Robinson, Clerk

Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes October 4, 2021 — Regular Meeting



Business Item :

Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC
Department: Board of Commissioners
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: Jasper County Board of Health Appointment

Summary:

Carole Norris’s term on the Jasper County Board of Health will expire in December.

Carole Norris has agreed to serve another term on the Board from January 1, 2022 to December 31,
2027.

Background:

Jasper County Health Department Board of Directors has seven members.

Jasper County BOC appoints three members to the Jasper County Board of Health

Cost:

None

Recommended Motion:

Appoint Carole Norris to Jasper County Health Department Board for the term January 1, 2022 through
December 31, 2027.












Business — Item :

Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC

Department: Recreation

Date: November 1, 2021
Subject: Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment
Summary:

Jasper County Recreation Board has 2 vacancies that need to be filled.
The following people have expressed interest in serving on the Board:

Catherine Kendall
Robert Rosser

Background:

The Jasper County Recreation Board is a seven (7) member board

Cost: None

Recommended Motion:
Appoint Catherine Kendall and Robert Rosser to the Jasper County Recreation Board for a 3-year term
ending November 2024.



Applicant Name: (\QH\@HY\Q KQD’\C\Q\\ pate: 1N/ 19/2]

1 would like to apply for appointment to the following Board, Committee, or Authority:

e lenler

How long have you been a resident of Jasper County?

Syns
()

Which Jasper County district do you live in?

) _l_Z(z) e @ 6

What qualifications, experience, and certifications do you possess that should be considered for

the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?
) . *
CONE TN Kperien(e Loh e (€ 2ot

Qar:km& ond S0hool evesY. alae f)g 12 aigz';g nCe 1N

eO.\f\. lA C&ISK&AA‘%Ahféi‘ }(\_c\:re ﬁfﬁ:\;ﬁm

Are you currety/{erving on another Board, Committee, Authority or elected position?
Yes NO If Yes, please list.

Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment, your family, or your
serving on the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?

Yes \/NO If Yes, please explain.




What is your vision for the county’s future in relation to the Board, Committee, or
uthority you are seeking appointment on?

: e _Aenis ¥ welies
foor e Kids ond posbn o ) pey (‘oovv@«;,
O '\ -'\' (Omf’h\:'\qc\j

Explain your understanding of the duties of this Board, Committee, or Authority:

a

SrCU(\ d

O Neg Coorprm W\u(\‘\lr::)

Briefly explain why you seek appointment to this Board, Committee, or Authority:
’ ( =+ pox themmoalds

Sa“Qé roré \—\c\\r\\))s X S5e Ao \]/0&)-1—\'\ a_r\/l \)cht_);
_%&;&f 4 oor\—\-}/

Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County Employee? If so, please describe.

ADo

If appointed, I agree to serve and participate in required and or voluntary training. Z Yes No

10/ /2]

ighature Application Date




Kober+ ?05&'34/'

I would like to apply for appointment to the followiug Board, Committee, or Authority:
2 ﬁéﬂ%‘i o j Eaaff(

How long have you been a resident of Jasper County?
hi‘g,\/e- .24 \Feﬂ"‘)

Which Jasper County district do you live in?

_w Yt _eo _e® _6

What qualifications, experience, and certifications do you possess that should be considered for
the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?

dhe rlec " N 4
2N .l Uoda, L ows o oo !'%‘ d&!dg wohgs videl z-j
3, S ( T e Y

Spec 43 and howe an excellont fw&iﬁ
dhe hrelz,

Are you currently serving on another Board, Committee, Authority or elected
position? Yes _2X_NO If Yes, please list.

Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment, your family, or your
serving on the Board, Committce, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?

Yes x NO If Yes, please explain.

What is yeur vision for the county’s future in relation to the Board, Committee, or

Authority you are seeking appointment on? ! ; E
£ocr dhes and o mﬁ\s-g"h‘& s ! & étarig}_&e fae,




Explain your understanding of the duties of this Board, Committee, or Authority:

To seeh Jhe hollecment f osor Kids, 1"«_:%_
and Comilies theoewh dhe crel

M St wre  oDle~ prede -P&wgh :Pﬁf‘b'

Briefly explain why you seek appointment to this Board, Committee, or Authority:

— see s hal Sasper c'....nw Va

euld be,
& o I~ SRS
' e psy ! o se fiiwe 4o
&
J_>gn_b§;3h-\cc dhan. = atileLir (;m:[

Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County Employee? If so, please
describe.

Al _awn © Seoper Conky Beand of Slundin
M\l S M¥ S her. &E‘V‘l”“’\

If appointed, | agree to serve and participate in required and or voluntary training. X Yes No

% O-(¥x-2\

Signature Application Date




Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC
Department: Board of Commissioners
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: CGEMC Agreement for Expediting Expansion of High Speed Internet Service

Summary:

Central Georgia Electric Membership Corporation plans to extend high speed internet service along its
existing electric lines.

Background:
The BOC at its May 3, 2021 regular meeting approved investing $900,000 with Central Georgia EMC

to expedite expansion of high speed broadband service to Jasper County residents served by the
CGEMC.

Cost:

$900,000
Funding Source — American Rescue Plan Funds

Recommended Motion:

Authorize Chairman to sign the “Agreement for Expediting Expansion of High Speed Internet Service to
Jasper County, Georgia” between Jasper County BOC and Central Georgia Electric Membership
Corporation.



JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

AGREEMENT FOR EXPEDITING EXPANSION OF HIGH SPEED INTERNET
SERVICE TO JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

THIS AGREEMENT is made this , 2021, between Jasper County, Georgia
("County"), a political subdivision of Georgia, and Central Georgia Electric Membership
Corporation, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Georgia, whose principal office
is located in Jackson, Georgia (hereinafter called the Corporation).

WHEREAS, the County and the Corporation strive for a good working relationship that will
benefit all customers of the Corporation who reside in the County; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation currently plans to extend high speed internet services along its
existing lines within the County and offer said internet services to its customers; and

WHEREAS, County is desirous to promote efforts to make available high speed internet
service to its citizens; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation is confident that if County provides the funds totaling
$900,000.00 as outlined herein, it shall complete the installation of equipment necessary to provide
high-speed internet access to its customers located in Jasper County sometime during the third
quarter of 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation can expedite it’s installation of high speed internet according
to the installation schedule herein if the County contributes funds to defray installation costs
according to the payment schedule herein; and

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration and mutual promises between the parties
hereto, in consideration of the promises, and in compliance with and pursuant to the provisions,
terms, and conditions of the statutes pertaining thereto, the parties hereby contract with each other
to promote the expedited installation of high-speed internet access to citizens of Jasper County who
are customers of the Corporation, as follows:

1. The above preamble is incorporated herein. This Agreement shall be binding on the
parties immediately and terminating on the schedule included herein.

2. County shall provide payment according to the below schedule to the Corporation.
This payment shall be funded through County's general fund.

3. The Corporation shall complete any and all work necessary to offer high-speed internet
to its customers in Jasper County by the date indicated in the below schedule and shall certify
the percentages of the total project completed to the County at each indicated interval. If it
appears to the County that there is no appreciable progress or that progress is substantially lower
than the expected percentages as described in the Payment Schedule, the County shall consult
with the Corporation prior to withholding any scheduled payments.

4. The Corporation will start field engineering activity by December of 2021 with
construction activity to begin by April of 2022.



5. Payment Schedule

Date Payment Work Certified Complete*
2" Quarter 2023 $450,000.00 50%
3 Quarter 2023 $450,000.00 100%

*Work completion percentage correlates with percentage of Central Georgia EMC
customers who are eligible to schedule in-home installations due to completion of main-
line fiber infrastructure.

6. Penalty for Delayed Completion

If Corporation does not complete the work necessary to provide access to high-speed internet to
its Jasper County customers by the end of the 3™ quarter of 2023, the total payment from the
County shall be decreased by $30,000.00 per month thereafter until the work by Corporation is
completed.

7. Miscellaneous Legal Provisions.

All disputes arising under this Agreement shall be litigated in the Superior Court of Jasper
County, Georgia.

This agreement shall continue in effect from year to year until terminated by any of the
parties, who shall give notice in writing in accordance herewith per the laws of Georgia.

This Agreement may not be modified except by written instrument signed by the parties. This
Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties and contains the
sole and entire understanding between the parties with respect to transactions contemplated by
this Agreement. All promises, inducements, offers, solicitations, agreements, representations
and warranties heretofore made between the parties, if any, are superseded.

Except as expressly limited by this Agreement, all rights, powers and privileges conferred
hereunder shall be cumulative and not restrictive of those provided at law or in equity.

No failure of any party to exercise any power given under this Agreement or to insist upon
strict compliance with any obligation specified in this Agreement, and no custom or practice at
variance with the terms of this Agreement, shall constitute a waiver of any party's right to
demand exact compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted to be given
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be addressed and delivered to each party at the addresses
below. Any such notice, request, demand or other communication shall be considered given or
delivered, as the case may be, on the date of receipt. Rejection or other refusal to accept or
inability to deliver because of changed address of which proper notice was not given shall be
deemed to be receipt of the notice, request, demand or other communication. By giving prior
written notice thereof, any party may from time to time and at any time change its address for
notices hereunder. Legal counsel for the respective parties may send to the other party any
notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder

2



by such party.

On and after the date of this Agreement, the parties shall, at the request of the other, make,
execute and deliver or obtain and deliver all instruments and documents and shall do or cause to
be done all such other things which any party may reasonably require to effectuate the provisions
and intentions of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be construed without regard to the identity of the person who drafted
the various provisions hereof. Each provision of this agreement shall be construed as though all
the parties participated equally in its drafting. Consequently, the parties acknowledge and agree
that any rule of construction that a document is to be construed against the drafting party shall
not be applicable to this Agreement.

If any provision of this Agreement is held unenforceable such provision shall be fully
severable. The Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such unenforceable provision
had never comprised a part hereof, and the remaining provisions shall remain in full force.

The signatories state they have the authority to bind the party on whose behalf they are signing.
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED:

For Central Georgia Electric For Board of Commissioners of Jasper County
Membership Corporation
By: By:

(signature) (signature)
Name: Name:

(type or print) (type or print)
Title: Title:

[SEAL] [SEAL]
Witness: Attest:

County Clerk



Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC

Department: Board of Commissioners

Date: November 1, 2021
Subject: Revenue Sharing Agreement — Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North
Summary:

Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North Revenue Sharing Agreement to be Presented for Approval.

Background:

Cost:

Recommended Motion:

Authorize Chairman to sign the Resolution to Approve and the Amended and Restated
Intergovernmental Contract “Revenue Sharing Agreement for Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs
North”.



AMENDED AND RESTATED
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT
RE: REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT FOR STANTON SPRINGS AND STANTON
SPRINGS NORTH

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT (“Contract”), made and entered into as of
the _ day of , 2021 by and between JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA, a
political subdivision of the State of Georgia, MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political
subdivision of the State of Georgia, NEWTON COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of
the State of Georgia, WALTON COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of
Georgia (collectively the “Counties”), the CITY OF SOCIAL CIRCLE, a political subdivision of
the State of Georgia (the “City”), the JOINT DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF JASPER
COUNTY, MORGAN COUNTY, NEWTON COUNTY AND WALTON COUNTY, a public
body corporate and politic of the State of Georgia (the “Authority”), and JASPER COUNTY
SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public body corporate and politic of the State of Georgia, MORGAN
COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public body corporate and politic of the State of Georgia,
NEWTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public body corporate and politic of the State of
Georgia, WALTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public body corporate and politic of the
State of Georgia, and CITY OF SOCIAL CIRCLE SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public body corporate
and politic of the State of Georgia (collectively the “School Districts™) and between JASPER
COUNTY BOARD OF TAX ASSESSORS, MORGAN COUNTY BOARD OF TAX
ASSESSORS, NEWTON COUNTY BOARD OF TAX ASSESSORS, WALTON COUNTY
BOARD OF TAX ASSESSORS (collectively the “BOAs”), and JASPER COUNTY TAX
COMMISSIONER, MORGAN COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER, NEWTON COUNTY TAX
COMMISSIONER and the WALTON COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER, (collectively the “Tax
Commissioners™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2000, the Authority acquired an approximately 1,528-acre
site which has been expanded to now total approximately 1,635 acres, which site is located in
Morgan, Newton, and Walton Counties, in order to proceed with the development of a research
park known as Stanton Springs; and

WHEREAS, to acquire the Property, the Authority issued, and the Counties agreed to
make debt service payments on, taxable adjustable revenue bonds in the amount of $9,000,000.00
(the “Bonds™);

WHEREAS, by separate intergovernmental contracts dated October 1, 2000, the Counties
agreed to make debt service payments on the Bonds based on the following percentages:

Jasper County 10.0%



Morgan County 15.0%
Newton County 37.5%
Walton County 37.5%;

WHEREAS, on May 27, 2021, the Authority acquired an approximately 665-acre site
located north of Interstate 20 which lies in part in the Walton County, the City of Social Circle and
Morgan County to proceed with the development of an industrial park known as Stanton Springs
North; and

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section I1I, Paragraph I(a) of the Georgia Constitution authorizes,
among other things, any county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the State to contract
for a period not exceeding fifty years, with any other public agency, public corporation, or public
authority for joint services, for the provision of services, or for the provision or separate use of
facilities or equipment, provided that such contract deals with activities, services or facilities which
the contracting parties are authorized by law to undertake or provide; and

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section IV, Paragraph IV of the Georgia Constitution authorizes
counties and municipalities to enter into contracts with other counties and municipalities for the
purpose of allocating the proceeds of ad valorem taxes assessed and collected on property located
in such county or municipality with such other counties or municipalities with which the assessing
county or municipality has entered into agreements for the development of one or more regional
facilities and the allocation of other revenues generated from such regional facilities, and that such
a contract shall provide for the manner of development, operation and management of the regional
facility and the sharing of expenses among the contracting local governments and shall specify the
method of allocation and the percentage of ad valorem taxes and other revenues to be allocated to
each contracting local government; and

WHEREAS, On December 2, 2004, the Authority and the Counties entered into an
Intergovernmental Contract (“2004 Contract”) which, among other things, specified the
distribution of revenues, tax payments and payments in lieu of taxes collected on or in connection
with the Stanton Springs;

WHEREAS, On September 20, 2016, the Authority, Counties and School Districts entered
into an Intergovernmental Contract (“2016 Contract”) which superseded the 2004 Contract and
provided clarity on the procedures, rights, and obligations for sharing tax revenue and other
revenues generated from Stanton Springs; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the implications of the 2016 Contract on the Counties’ tax
digests, amendments to O.C.G.A. §36-62-5.1 and §48-5-274 were required and made by House
Bill 406, to ensure the tax digests of the Counties accurately reflected each County’s portion of
the property value in Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North; and

WHEREAS, implementation of the 2016 Contract and House Bill 406 require close
coordination and uniform procedures between the Boards of Tax Assessors and Tax
Commissioners of each County and City which resulted in Procedure Manuals being



independently adopted by the County Board of Tax Assessors and Tax Commissioners from each
County in 2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2021, the Authority and Social Circle entered into an
Intergovernmental Contract regarding Stanton Springs North underwhich the Authority agreed to
initiate a revision of the 2016 Contract to account for tax revenue division for property in Stanton
Springs North; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the 2016 Contract to incorporate the addition of
Stanton Springs North, the City of Social Circle and the Social Circle School District, account for
the requirements of House Bill 406, and define the procedures, rights and obligations associated
with sharing tax revenue and other revenues generated therein with all parties; and

WHEREAS, for clarity, this Agreement shall supersede the 2004 Contract and the 2016
Contract.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and undertakings as
hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Authority, City, Counties, Board of Tax Assessors, Tax
Commissioners and School Districts HEREBY AGREE as follows:

1.

The preamble and recitals above make up a part of the terms, conditions and provisions of
this Contract.

2.

This Contract shall become effective upon execution by all parties and shall continue in
effect for fifty (50) years.

3.
Definitions

a. Assessing BOA: The Board of Tax Assessors (“BOA”) of the County in which 51% or
more of the land owned or leased by a company within Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs
North is located. Walton County’s BOA is the Assessing BOA for Takeda (formerly
Baxter, Baxalta and Shire) and for projects with 51% or more land in Walton County or
the City of Social Circle. Newton County’s BOA is the Assessing BOA for Facebook (aka
Morning Hornet, LLC) and any projects with 51% or more land in Newton County.
Morgan County’s BOA is the Assessing BOA for Baymare, LLC and any projects with
51% or more land in Morgan County.

b. Assessment Notices: Annual notices stating the assessed value of property sent to
taxpayers.

c. Collecting Commissioner: The Tax Commissioner of the County in which 51% or more
of the land owned or leased by a company within Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North



is located. The Walton County Tax Commissioner is the Collecting Commissioner for

Takeda and any projects with 51% or more property in Walton County or the City of Social

Circle. The Newton County Tax Commissioner is the Collecting Commissioner for

Facebook and any projects with 51% or more property in Newton County. Morgan County

Tax Commissioner is the Collecting Commissioner for Baymare, LLC and any projects

with 51% or more property in Morgan County.

. Debt Service Obligations: Debt Service Obligations are the Authority’s obligations which

are currently outstanding and any future debt service obligations incurred by the Authority

with the approval of the Counties pursuant to the terms herein. As of the date of this

Contract, the Authority has no direct Debt Service Obligations.

. Expenses: Expenses shall be defined as any costs incurred by the Authority as allowed

under Georgia law for the development of Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North plus

the sum of reasonable reserves for maintenance, operations, and expenses.

House Bill 406: HB 406, effective as of May 7, 2019, amended O.C.G.A. § 36-62-5.1 and

0.C.G.A. § 48-5-274 to create reporting requirements for the Authority and establish the

process for Counties to report shared tax values on their individual tax digests.

. Net Other Revenues: Net Other Revenues are Other Revenues minus the Authority’s

Expenses and Debt Service Obligations.

. Net Tax Revenues: Net Tax Revenues are Tax Revenues minus the Authority’s budgeted

Expenses and Debt Service Obligations not otherwise paid from Other Revenues.

Other Revenues: Other Revenues are revenues generated from the Authority’s activities

including but not limited to, sales of land, leases of land, sales or leases of personalty, sales

of timber or other resources and fees. Other Revenues shall not include any fees

specifically allocated to the Authority in connection with a bond issuance.

Parcel Identification Numbers: Numbers assigned to tax parcels for identification

purposes by the BOAs.

. Payment In Lieu of Taxes (“PILOT”) Structure: Tax abatement structure applicable to

some properties in Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North where set payments are made

by a company over a certain number of years in lieu of paying taxes. Facebook (aka

Morning Hornet, LLC) is structured in this way. PILOT payments are made to the JDA

and the JDA distributes said payments to the Counties, Cities and School Districts in

accordance with the terms herein.

Payout Percentage:

a. For Stanton Springs, the payout percentages are: Jasper County — 10%; Morgan
County — 15%; Newton County — 37.5%; Walton County — 37.5%.
b. For Stanton Springs North, the payout percentages are: : Jasper County — 9.5%;

Morgan County — 14.25%; Newton County — 35.625%; Walton County —35.625%;
Social Circle — 5%.

. Phase-In Lease Valuation Structure: Tax abatement structure applicable to some

properties in Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North where a lease valuation schedule

determines the percentage of taxes paid by a company each year for a certain number of

years until the percentage reaches 100%.



n. Stanton Springs: Stanton Springs is approximately 1,635 acres currently located in the
development park known as Stanton Springs and is generally bounded by Interstate 20 to
the north, Hwy 278 to the west, and private property owners to the east and south including
any land added to Stanton Springs in the future which is south of Interstate 20. A general
boundary map of Stanton Springs as of the date hereof is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”,

0. Stanton Springs North: Stanton Springs North is a new research development park which
the Authority may develop. Stanton Springs North will be generally bounded by Interstate
20 to the south and Hwy 278 to the west and will expand to the north and east into both
Walton and Morgan Counties. The actual boundaries will be established on a parcel-by-
parcel basis as the Authority purchases or otherwise gains control of property. The
Authority may designate properties as being in Stanton Springs North by Resolution which
includes a boundary map, parcel number(s) and description of the property. A copy of the
Resolution with attachments shall be provided to the parties hereto. As of the date hereof,
Stanton Springs North consists of approximately 665 acres as shown on the attached
Exhibit “B”.

p. Tax Digest: The Tax Digest is the list of all properties and values within a County, City
or School District.

q. Tax Revenues: Tax Revenues are all ad valorem taxes levied by the Counties, City and
the School Districts on real and personal property in Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs
North. This includes all taxes assessed on fee simple and leasehold interests, board of
education taxes, taxes collected for special assessments for specific services, general
obligation bonds, and any and all other ad valorem property taxes collected. Tax Revenues
shall not include taxes collected by a county department other than the chief tax collector
including, but not limited to, sales taxes, insurance premium taxes, intangible taxes, real
estate transfer taxes, railroad taxes, franchise fees, occupational taxes, alcohol taxes, and
financial institution taxes. Tax Revenues shall also not include ad valorem title taxes on
motor vehicles. Tax Revenue shall not include ad valorem taxes collected on behalf of and
due the State of Georgia. Finally, Tax Revenues shall not include any penalties or interest
collected for late payments; any such penalties and interest shall be retained by the County
of the Collecting Commissioner.

r. Tenant: a person or entity which owns, or leases from the Authority, any portion of the
Property, including the Authority.

s. Tenant Property: Tenant Property is the real and personal property owned or leased by a
Tenant, including the Authority.

4.
Distribution of Tax Revenues 2004 — 2015

From 2004 to 2015, Tax Revenues were generated from portions of the Property located in
Newton and Walton Counties. Said Tax Revenues were collected by Newton and Walton
Counties and distributed in accordance with their millage rates without taking into account the
2004 Contract. Pursuant to the 2016 Contract, Walton County, Newton County and the
Newton County School District repaid the amounts due by utilizing their share of the 2020



distribution of taxes generated in Stanton Springs. As of the date hereof, no known
reimbursements are due.

5.

Authority’s Obligations
The Authority hereby agrees as follows:

a. The Authority shall collect and deposit in a separate account any and all Other Revenues.
b. The Authority shall collect and deposit in a second separate account any and all Tax
Revenues distributed to it by the Collecting Commissioners and any PILOT payments.

c. The Authority shall pay its Expenses and Debt Service Obligations first from Other

Revenues and then from PILOT Payments and then from Tax Revenues.

d. The Authority shall prepare an operating budget report annually to include its projected
Expenses, Debt Obligations, Other Revenues, PILOT Payments and Tax Revenues for the
12-month period from July 1-June 30. The operating budget shall specify the amount of
Tax Revenues or PILOT Payments necessary for the Authority to meet its budget
requirements for the Authority’s Expenses and Debt Service Obligations not otherwise paid
by Other Revenues. A copy of said operating budget shall be delivered to the Counties and
City on or before the first day of May of each year with a copy to each School District.

e. The Authority does not have any Debt Service Obligations as of the date hereof. The
Counties shall approve all new Debt Service Obligations.

f. The Authority shall distribute Net Other Revenues for the prior year to the Counties on or
before March 15 of each year in accordance with their payout percentages as follows:

1. Jasper County shall receive 10.0%;

2. Morgan County shall receive 15.0%;

3. Newton County shall receive 37.5%; and
4. Walton County shall receive 37.5%.

g. The Authority shall distribute PILOT Payments received for projects in Stanton Springs
for the prior year on or before March 15 of each year to each entity in accordance with the
payout percentages as follows:

1. Jasper County shall receive 10.0% with payment to be divided between Jasper
County and the Jasper County School District per an Intergovernmental Agreement
between Jasper County and the Jasper County School District dated October 4,
2021; and

2. Morgan County shall receive 15.0% with payment to be divided between Morgan
County and the Morgan County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates; and

3. Newton County shall receive 37.5% with payment to be divided between Newton
County and the Newton County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates; and ‘

4., Walton County shall receive 37.5% with payment to be divided between Walton
County and the Walton County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates.



h. The Authority shall distribute PILOT Payments received for projects in Stanton Springs
North for the prior year on or before March 15 of each year to each entity in accordance
with the payout percentages as follows:

1. Social Circle shall receive 5% with payment to be divided between Social Circle
and the Social Circle School District based upon their proportionate millage rates;
and

2. Walton County shall receive 35.625% with payment to be divided between Walton
County and the Walton County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates.

3. Newton County shall receive 35.625% with payment to be divided between Newton
County and the Newton County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates; and

4. Morgan County shall receive 14.25% with payment to be divided between Morgan
County and the Morgan County School District based upon their proportionate
millage rates;

5. Jasper County shall receive 9.5% with payment to be divided between Jasper
County and the Jasper County School District per an Intergovernmental Agreement
between Jasper County and the Jasper County School District dated October 4,
2021.

i. The Authority shall cause to be performed an annual independent audit of its finances. Said
audit shall be included in the Authority’s budgeted expenses which shall be paid using
Other Revenues or Tax Revenues or PILOT Payments when necessary. A copy of the audit
shall be distributed to all Counties, School Districts and the City.

j.  On or before February 15" of each year, the Authority shall prepare and submit to the state
revenue commissioner and state auditor the report and information required pursuant to
0.C.G.A. § 36-62-5.1(g)(1).

6.

Counties’ and City Obligations and Consent
The Counties and City hereby agree as follows:

a. The Collecting Commissioner shall collect and declare any and all Tax Revenues generated
from real property and personal property lying on or in Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs
North as applicable and shall supervise a separate accounting for said Tax Revenues so as
to segregate said collections from other County or City tax revenues. As compensation for
the Collecting Commissioner’s duties hereunder, the Collecting Commissioner shall be
entitled to a commission of 2.5% of any amounts otherwise payable by the Collecting
Commissioner to any other County, City or School District.

b. The Collecting Commissioners shall, before January 1 of each year, prepare a report of all
Tax Revenues collected by said County and deliver a copy of said annual report to the
Counties, City, School Districts, and the Authority.

c. Between May 1 and May 31 each year, the Counties may submit to the Authority and the
Counties a written objection to the Expenses stated in the Authority’s operating budget for

7



July 1 through June 30 of the same year. Said objection shall specify the grounds for the
objection. Pending resolution of the objection, the Collecting Commissioner shall remit
Tax Revenues to the Authority in the amount of its operating budget approved for the prior
year. No Tax Revenues may be distributed to the Counties, City or School Districts until
the objection is resolved.

d. If no objections are submitted, on or before May 31 of each year, the Collecting
Commissioner shall remit Tax Revenues to the Authority in an amount sufficient to meet
the Authority’s annual budget requirements for the Authority’s Expenses and Debt Service
Obligations not otherwise budgeted to be paid by Other Revenues as established by the
Authority’s annual budget report. If more than one County or City collects Tax Revenues
in a given year, each Collecting Commissioner shall pay a pro rata share of the Authority’s
budget based on that Government’s share of the total taxes collected.

e. The Collecting Commissioner shall determine Net Tax Revenues to be remitted to the
Counties, City and School Districts by subtracting from Tax Revenues the funds paid to
the Authority in accordance with subparagraph (d).

f. The Collecting Commissioner shall remit Net Tax Revenues from Stanton Springs
contemporaneously to each of the Tax Commissioners of the Counties for the previous tax
year on or before March 15™ as follows:

i. Jasper County and the Jasper County School District shall collectively receive
10.0% of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amount shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner);

ii.  Morgan County and the Morgan County School District shall collectively receive
15.0% of the said Net Tax (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as commissions
for the Collecting Commissioner);

ili.  Newton County and the Newton County School District shall collectively receive
37.5% of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner);

iv.  Walton County and the Walton County School District shall collectively receive
37.5% of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner).

g. The Collecting Commissioner shall remit Net Tax Revenues from Stanton Springs North
contemporaneously to each of the Tax Commissioners of the Counties and the City Clerk of Social
Circle for the previous tax year on or before March 15% as follows:

i.  Jasper County shall receive 9.5 % of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said
amount shall be withheld as commissions for the Collecting Commissioner);

ii.  Morgan County and the Morgan County School District shall collectively receive
14.25 % of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner);

iii.  Newton County and the Newton County School District shall collectively receive
35.625 % of the said Net Tax (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner);



iv.  Walton County and the Walton County School District shall collectively receive
35.625% of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld as
commissions for the Collecting Commissioner); and

v. The City of Social and the City of Social Circle School District shall collectively
receive 5% of the said Net Tax Revenues (2.5% of said amounts shall be withheld
as commissions for the Collecting Commissioner).

The Tax Commissioners for Morgan, Walton and Newton Counties shall distribute their portion of
the Net Tax Revenues received from the Collecting Commissioner on or before March 31st of each
year to their respective County and School Board based on the proportion of their millage rates.
The Tax Commissioner for Jasper County shall distribute Jasper County’s portion of the Net Tax
Revenues received from the Collecting Commissioner on or before March 31st of each year with
payments divided between Jasper County and the Jasper County School District pursuant to the
Intergovernmental Agreement between Jasper County and Jasper County School Districted dated
October 4, 2021.

The Social Circle City Clerk shall distribute Sociai Circle’s portion of the Net Tax Revenues
received from the Collecting Commissioner on or before March 31% of each year to the City and
the Social Circle School District based on the proportion of their millage rates.

Other Revenues distributed to the Counties by the Authority may be used at the Counties’
discretion.

No later than January 1 of each year, Morgan, Newton and Walton County and the City of
Social Circle shall provide to the Collecting Commissioner the percentage split of Net Tax
Revenues between that County and that County’s School District or the City and the City’s
School District as applicable, based on the proportion of the prior year’s millage rate of
that County or City to the millage rate of that County’s School District. The Collecting
Commissioner shall use such percentage to calculate the amount of Net Tax Revenues that
the City of Social Circle, and Newton, Morgan and Walton Counties and their respective
School Districts are to be paid.

. Any tax refunds due property owners in Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North shall be
paid by the Collecting Commissioner in the time period prescribed by law (O.C.G.A. § 48-
5-380, 241). The Collecting Commissioner’s County shall be reimbursed by the Counties,
City and School Districts based on their pro rata share of the refund amount. The
Collecting Commissioner shall invoice the Counties and School Districts.

Should the Collecting Commissioner deem it in the best interest of the parties to conduct
an external tax audit of real or personal property attributed to a tenant(s) in Stanton Springs
or Stanton Springs North, said audit shall be paid for by the Counties, City, and School
Districts based on their pro rata shares.

The Counties and City shall adjust their tax digest to reflect the portion of Tax Revenues attributed
to it from distributions from Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North in accordance with
0.C.G.A. § 36-62-5.1(g)(3).

7.

Board of Tax Assessors Obligations



a. Point of Contact
The Assessing BOA shall serve as the single point of contact with the Tenant as it relates
to ad valorem property taxes.

b. Assessment Process for: No Tax Abatement or Phase-In Lease Valuation Structure

1.

On or before April 1% of each year, the Chief Appraiser for Morgan, Newton and

Walton BOA shall prepare and provide a spreadsheet consistent with the sample

provided in attached Exhibit “C” to each BOA and the Authority with the following

information for the current tax year regarding each Tenant Property (real and personal),

including property owned by the Authority, that it is responsible for assessing:

Parcel number

Address

Owner name

Tenant name

Description

100% fair market value

Assessed value

Note if it is a PILOT Structure

Note if it is subject to a Phase-In Lease Valuation Structure

Phase-in percentage (if a Phase-In Lease Valuation Structure)

Note whether it is Exempt or Taxable

Exempt value to be reported by each BOA based on their Payout Percentage
m. Taxable value to be reported by each BOA based on their Payout Percentage

Each BOA shall include the values applicable to its County/City shown on the

spreadsheet with all other digest values to be approved by the BOA prior to mailing

Assessment Notices.

Each BOA shall input the assessment value for the property into its system based on its

Payout Percentage. For example, if the total assessed value of a parcel within the

Stanton Springs were $100,000, Jasper County would report $10,000, Morgan County

would report $15,000, and Walton County and Newton County would each report

$37,500 on their respective Tax Digests. If the total assessed value of a parcel within

Stanton Springs North were $100,000, the City would report $5,000, Jasper County

would report $9,500, Morgan County would report $14,250, and Walton County and

Newton County would each report $35,625 on their respective Tax Digests.

Each BOA shall mail their Assessment Notice showing its portion of the total value of

each Tenant Property to the Assessing BOA Chief Appraiser and Collecting

Commissioner. Ifthe BOA uses the Wingap software system, this would be achieved

by listing the Assessing BOA Chief Appraiser as the primary recipient and the

Collecting Commissioner as the agent recipient.

SRS FR M e e o

10



5. The Assessing BOA shall prepare and mail one Assessment Notice to the Tenant

showing the sum of all the Counties’ portion of the value such that the notice shows
the 100% value. Once the single Assessment Notice has been printed and mailed, the
Chief Appraiser shall correct the value in its system back to the Payout Percentage for
its County.

Each BOA and the City shall submit their Tax Digest reporting their Payout Percentage
of the assessed value of the Property per the requirements of House Bill 406.

Within five (5) days of approval of the Tax Digest, the Assessing BOA shall create a
Digest correction by preparing an Error and Release or ACO report requesting the
Digest be corrected to show the 100% value of the property and submit the same to the
Collecting Commissioner.

Within one (1) day after submitting the Digest correction, the Assessing BOA shall
reverse the Error and Release or ACO.

Assessment Process for: Payment In Lieu of Taxes Structure

During the PILOT period, each Tax Assessor shall report its portion of the assessed
value of the Tenant Property subject to the PILOT on its exempt Digest in accordance
with the spreadsheet provided by the Assessing BOA in Paragraph 7( b) (1) herein and
by following the steps listed in Paragraph 7 (b) (2) — (8) above.

Mapping/Parcel Identification

1.

Each BOA shall identify the Property by the parcel identification number first assigned
by the Assessing BOA.

Each BOA shall remove the valuation of property in Stanton Springs and Stanton
Springs North from its QPublic website. If the BOA uses the Wingap software system,
this is achieved by going to the Payout screen and checking the non-disclosure box for
the particular parcel.

8.

Tax Commissioners Obligations

. Digest Reporting

All Tax Commissioners and the City shall report the value of the property in Stanton
Springs and Stanton Springs North, as applicable, based on their Payout Percentage in their
Tax Digest per House Bill 406.

. Annual Report of Taxes Collected

11



On or before January 1 of each year, the Collecting Commissioner shall provide a report
of the total taxes collected, the commission calculation and the amounts to be distributed
to the Authority, the City, each County, and each School District as dictated herein.

. Process for: No Tax Abatement or Phase-In Lease Valuation Structure

1. The Tax Commissioners and the City shall send bills for the Tenant Property based on
their Payout Percentage to the Collecting Commissioner.

2. The Collecting Commissioner shall send one bill to the Tenant based on the 100%
valuation of the Tenant Property as shown on the Error and Release or ACO report
provided by the Assessing BOA.

3. The Collecting Commissioner shall receive payment from the Tenant and distribute it
to the Authority, the City or the Tax Commissioners of Jasper, Morgan, Newton and
Walton Counties as determined by the distributions due each herein. Distributions to
the Tax Commissioner for Jasper, Morgan, Newton and Walton County and to the City
of Social Circle shall include a letter referencing the proportion split obligations for
payments to the Counties, City and School Boards. Each Tax Commissioner shall
distribute the monies in accordance with Paragraph 6 herein.

. Process for: Payment In Lieu of Taxes Structure

1. During the PILOT period, the Tax Commissioners shall not generate bills or collect
payments. The Authority will handle billing, collection, and distribution of PILOT
Payments.

2. After the PILOT Payment period, Tax Commissioners shall follow the Process for: No
Tax Abatement stated above.

Tax Commissioner and City Tax Payment Websites

The Tax Commissioners and the City shall either remove online billing options for property
in Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North or include the following language in red,
bold letters on the Property Tax Statement form: “Do not pay online. Value and taxes
reflect County’s/City’s % portion only. Contact Tax Commissioner/City for
100% value and taxes due.” The blanks shall be filled in with the name of the County/City
and its Payout Percentage.

9.

Authority Budget and Expenses

. The parties understand and acknowledge the annual operating budgets prepared by the
Authority are based on its estimate of reasonable and foreseeable expenses.

12



b. In the event the Authority’s actual expenditures are less than budgeted expenditures, any
excess Tax Revenues or PILOT Payments received shall be distributed in accordance with
Paragraph 5(g). Notwithstanding the above, the Authority may keep a reasonable amount
of budgeted reserve funds and capital project funds for multi-year projects.

c. In the event the Authority’s actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures due to
unforeseen circumstances, including but not limited to the location or expansion of a new
business within Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North or litigation, reimbursement of
those expenses shall be included in the budget for the following fiscal year. Within thirty
(30) days of the Authority becoming aware it will incur unbudgeted expenses, the
Authority shall provide the Counties , City and School Districts with an estimate of the
unbudgeted expenditure and an explanation of the circumstances giving rise to the
expenditure.

d. In the event the Authority’s annual operating budget exceeds the Other Revenues, PILOT
Payments, and Tax Revenues levied and collected in any given year, the Authority shall
fund the balance of its budgeted operating expenses as follows:

i.  Provided the Authority has access to an existing, County-approved, line of credit
with a financial institution, the Authority shall make draws from said line of credit
to meet its budget requirements for that year. Repayment of funds drawn from the
line of credit shall then be added to the Authority’s budgets for the following fiscal
years until said funds, including any interest thereon, have been repaid in full; or

ii.  Ifthe Authority does not have access to an existing, County-approved line of credit,
the Authority shall send invoices for the balance of its budgeted operating expenses
to the Counties within thirty (30) days of the Authority’s receipt of its share of the
Tax Revenues from the Collecting Commissioner or Counties. Said invoices shall
reference each County’s share of the balance of the Authority’s budgeted operating
expenses based on the agreed upon percentages as follows:

1.Jasper County shall pay 10.0%;
2.Morgan County shall pay 15.0%;
3.Newton County shall pay 37.5%; and
4.Walton County shall pay 37.5%.

10.
School District Consent

To the extent permitted by law, the City of Social Circle, Jasper County, Morgan County,
Newton County and Walton County School Districts (“School Districts™) hereby expressly consent
to the terms, provisions, agreements and requirements herein and waive any rights or claims to
Tax Revenues and PILOT Payments other than those specifically referenced herein.

13



11.

Tax Assessor Consent and Authorization to Contract

To the extent permitted by law, the Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County and
Walton County Board of Tax Assessors hereby expressly consent to the terms, provisions,
agreements and requirements stated herein. Each County hereby expressly authorizes its Board of
Tax Assessors to enter into this agreement and future agreements with the Authority and
companies locating within Stanton Springs or Stanton Springs North which are consistent
herewith.

12.
Tax Commissioner Consent

To the extent permitted by law, the Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County and
Walton County Tax Commissioners hereby expressly consent to the terms, provisions, agreements
and requirements stated herein.

13.
Economic Development Negotiations

In order to be competitive in the economic development marketplace, the Authority is hereby
authorized to negotiate with prospective business and industrial purchasers or tenants for payments
in lieu of ad valorem taxation or tax abatements consistent and in accordance with applicable
law(s).

14.

Centralized Inspection and Building-Permitting

It is to the benefit of the parties that the development of Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs
North occurs in a consistent manner. Therefore, the parties hereby agree the inspection and
building-permit function for development within Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North shall
be handled by the planning and zoning department so designated by the Authority pursuant to the
terms of the Intergovernmental Contract Re: Development Services for Stanton Springs dated
March 2, 2021 and executed by Jasper, Morgan Newton and Walton Counties and the Authority,
and the May 18, 2021 Intergovernmental Contract Re: Stanton Springs North between the City of
Social Circle and the Authority. The planning and zoning department handling the building-permit
function, if different from the County in which a project lies, shall provide the Assessing BOA a
copy of each permit issued for purposes of tracking real property values.

15.

General

14



a. Should any clause, sentence or paragraph herein contained be held invalid or
unconstitutional, it shall in nowise affect the remaining provisions of this Contract, which
shall otherwise remain in full force and effect.

b. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original
but all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

c. This Contract shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of

Georgia.

d. This Contract supersedes and replaces the 2004 Contract and 2016 Contract rendering the
2004 Contract and 2016 Contract null and void.

16.

Notices

All notices, correspondence, payments, and other communications required under this Contract

shall be delivered to:

For the Authority:

Chairman

300 E Church Street

Monroe, GA 30655

With a copy to:

Andrea P. Gray, Attorney at Law
P.O. Box 826

Monroe, Georgia 30655

For Jasper County:

Jasper County Board of Commissioners
Attn: Chair, Board of Commissioners
126 W. Green Street

Suite 18

Monticello, GA 31064

VWith a copy to:

David Ozburn

Ozburn Law Firm, LLC

1108 Monticello Street SW
Covington, Georgia 30014

Chairman

1411 College Street

Monticello, Georgia 31064

With a copy to:

Cory Kirby

Harben, Hartley & Hawkins, LLP
Wells Fargo Center, Suite 750
340 Jesse Jewell Parkway
Gainesville, Georgia 30501

For Jasper County School District:

Jasper County Board of Tax Assessors
Chief Appraiser

126 W Greene St # 124,

Monticello, GA 31064

Jasper County Tax Commissioner
Tax Commissioner

126 W. Green Street

Monticello, GA 31064

15



For Morgan County:

Morgan County

Attn: County Manager

150 East Washington Street
Suite 100

Madison, GA 30650

With a copy to:

Christian G. Henry

440 College Avenue N, Suite 120
Athens, GA 30601

For Morgan County School District:

Morgan County School System
1065 East Ave

Madison, GA 30650

With a copy to:

Cory Kirby

Harben, Hartley & Hawkins, LLP
340 Jesse Jewell Parkway

Wells Fargo Center, Suite 750
Gainesville, GA 30501

Morgan County Board of Tax Assessors
Chief Appraiser

150 E Washington St Ste 130

Madison, GA 30650

Morgan County Tax Commissioner
Tax Commissioner

P.O. Box 151

Madison, GA 30650

For Newton County:

Chairman of the Newton County Board of

Commissioners

1124 Clark Street

Covington, GA 30014

With a copy to:

Aaron Meyer

County Attorney

Jarrard & Davis, LLP

105 Pilgrim Village Drive, Suite 200
Cumming, GA 30040

For Newton County School District:

Superintendent

NCBOE

2109 Newton Drive

Covington, GA 30014

With a copy to:

William A. White

Smith, Welch, Webb & White, LLC
P.O.Box 10

2200 Keys Ferry Court
McDonough, Ga. 30253

Newton County Board of Tax Assessors
Chief Appraiser

1113 Usher St NE # 102

Covington, GA 30014

Newton County Tax Commissioner
Tax Commissioner

1113 Usher Street

Suite 101

Covington, GA 30014

For Walton County:

Walton County Finance Department
303 S. Hammond Drive, Suite 333
Monroe, Georgia 30655

With a copy to:

Walton County Tax Commissioner
303 S. Hammond Drive, Suite 100
Monroe, Georgia 30655

For Walton County School District:
Walton County School District

200 Double Springs Church Rd.
Monroe, GA 30656

Attention: Superintendent

With a copy to:

Michael C. Pruett

Hall Booth Smith, P.C.

440 College Ave., Suite 120

Athens, Georgia 30601

16



Walton County Board of Tax Assessors Walton County Tax Commissioner

Chief Appraiser Tax Commissioner
303 S Hammond Dr #109 303 S Hammond Dr.
Monroe, GA 30655 Suite 100
Monroe, GA 30655
For Social Circle For Social Circle School District:
Mayor 147 Alcova Drive Social Circle
c/o City of Social Circle GA 30025
PO Box 310

Social Circle, GA 30025

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, action by and through their duly authorized officers,
have caused this Contract to be executed in multiple counterparts under seals as of the day and
year first above written.

17



[Execution Page for AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT Re: REVENUE
SHARING, made and entered into as of the ___day of , 2021, by and between the City of Social
Circle, Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County, Walton County, Jasper County School District, Morgan
County School District, Newton County School District, Walton County School District, City of Social Circle School
District, Board of Tax Assessors of Newton, Walton, Morgan and Jasper Counties, Tax Commissioners of Jasper,
Morgan, Newton and Walton Counties, and the Joint Development Authority of Jasper, Morgan, Newton, and Walton
Counties]

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

By:

Chairman, Board of Commissioners

of Jasper County

(SEAL)

Attest:

Clerk, Board of Commissioners

of Jasper County

18



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL CONTRACT
RE: REVENUE SHARING AGREEMENT FOR STANTON SPRINGS AND STANTON
SPRINGS NORTH

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2000, the Joint Development Authority of Jasper County,
Morgan County, Newton County and Walton County ( the “Authority”) acquired an approximately
1,528-acre site which has been expanded to now total approximately 1,635 acres, which site is
located in Morgan, Newton, and Walton Counties, in order to proceed with the development of a
research park known as Stanton Springs; and

WHEREAS, by separate intergovernmental contracts dated October 1, 2000, the Counties
agreed to make debt service payments on the Bonds based on the following percentages:

Jasper County 10.0%
Morgan County 15.0%
Newton County 37.5%
Walton County 37.5%;

WHEREAS, on May 27, 2021, the Authority acquired an approximately 665-acre site
located north of Interstate 20 which lies in part in the Walton County, the City of Social Circle and

Morgan County to proceed with the development of an industrial park known as Stanton Springs
North; and

WHEREAS, On December 2, 2004, the Authority and the Counties entered into an
Intergovernmental Contract (“2004 Contract”) which, among other things, specified the
distribution of revenues, tax payments and payments in lieu of taxes collected on or in connection
with the Stanton Springs; and

WHEREAS, On September 20, 2016, the Authority, Counties and School Districts entered
into an Intergovernmental Contract (“2016 Contract™) which superseded the 2004 Contract and
provided clarity on the procedures, rights, and obligations for sharing tax revenue and other
revenues generated from Stanton Springs; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the implications of the 2016 Contract on the Counties’ tax
digests, amendments to O.C.G.A. §36-62-5.1 and §48-5-274 were required and made by House
Bill 406, to ensure the tax digests of the Counties accurately reflected each County’s portion of
the property value in Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North; and

WHEREAS, implementation of the 2016 Contract and House Bill 406 require close
coordination and uniform procedures between the Boards of Tax Assessors and Tax
Commissioners of each County and City which resulted in Procedure Manuals being
independently adopted by the County Board of Tax Assessors and Tax Commissioners from each
County in 2020; and



WHEREAS, on May 18, 2021, the Authority and Social Circle entered into an
Intergovernmental Contract regarding Stanton Springs North underwhich the Authority agreed to
initiate a revision of the 2016 Contract to account for tax revenue division for property in Stanton
Springs North; and

WHEREAS, the Jasper County desires to amend the 2016 Contract to incorporate the
addition of Stanton Springs North, the City of Social Circle and the Social Circle School District,
account for the requirements of House Bill 406, and define the procedures, rights and obligations
associated with sharing tax revenue and other revenues generated therein with all parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Jasper County Board of
Commissioners that the Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Contract Re. Revenue Sharing
Agreement for Stanton Springs and Stanton Springs North, a draft of which is attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, is approved as to form subject to non-material
revisions reviewed and approved by legal counsel, and the Chairman and Secretary are authorized
to execute said Contract.

SO RESOLVED this day of , 2021

Jasper County Board of Commissioners

By:
Name:
Title: Chairman

Attest:
Name:
Title: Secretary

(SEAL)



Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC

Department: Roads and Bridges

Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: 2022 LMIG Application Project Approval
Summary:

On Oct 4, 2021 the BOC approved the section of Jackson Lake Rd from SR 11 to SR 212 as the road
project for the 2022 LMIG application. Engineering estimates were requested for options including
resurfacing type, width and length.

Status

Jackson Lake Rd section from SR 11 North to SR 212 West
Section length - 4.1 Miles

Current Width — 20 Ft.

Engineering Cost Estimates Based on:
FDR and Overlay
Widen Existing Road from 20’ to 22’

Option 1
Length 2.36 Miles

Engineering Cost Estimate per Mile $323.507
Total Engineering Cost Estimate ~ $763,477

Option 2
Length 4.1 Miles

Engineering Cost Estimate per Mile $322.536
Total Engineering Cost Estimate $1,322,398

Option 2 Requires Additional Funding of $561,494 Over 2022 LMIG Minimum Project Cost

Other Resurfacing Options to be Discussed

Background:

GDOT 2022 LMIG Funding $585,310.96
County Required 30% Match $175.593.29
Total Project Minimum Cost $760,904.25
Cost:

Final Cost Based on Project Road Length and Actual Bid Costs Received
Funding Sources for Additional Funding Required with Option 2 to be Discussed

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion









New Business — Item
Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC

Department: Jasper County Fire Rescue

Date: November 1, 2021
Subject: Fire Rescue Department — Request for New Ambulance
Summary:

Jasper County Fire Rescue is seeking final approval for a purchase of a new ambulance.

Background:

Jasper County Fire Rescue was approved for a purchase of a new ambulance on 5-17-21 for $180,000.00
funded by the Capital Expenditures Fund. Due to the COVID 19 Pandemic, lead times are greatly
extended and available stock units are almost nonexistent. Jasper County Fire Rescue attended the EMS
expo in Atlanta this past October and inquired with close to 20 vendors, with most vendors refusing to
quote a new ambulance due the many unknowns such as ability to acquire new trucks, workforce
problems, supply chain problems and increasing material costs extending lead times into 2023.

Capital Fund Approval on 5-17-21 $180,000
Available Impact Fees Fire Allocation $ 85.264
Total $265,264
Cost:

1. Custom Truck and Body Works
- Demo —2021 Chevy 4500 with new box — In stock estimated delivery 12/2021
Price - $ 236,505.00
- New Build — 2021 Ford 450 with new box — Estimated delivery 4/2022
Price - § 193,053.00

2. Ten 8 Fire
- New Build — 2022 Ford 450 with new box — Estimated delivery 3/2022
Price - § 237,041.00

3. Specialty Vehicles
- 2022 Ford F450 4*4 with remounted box — Estimated delivery 03/2022

Price —205,800.00

Recommended Motion:
Board Discretion


















SUPPLEMENTAL PAINT LIMITED WARRANTY

PAINT LIMITED WARRANTY:

Custom Truck & Body Works, Inc. (Custom Works) wamrants to the original purchaser (*Owner”) only that the paint applied by Custom Works to the exterior surface of the
ambulancelrescue body shall be free from defects In materials and workmanship that materially impair the valus of the motor vehicle uncer normal use, malntenance end
service for a period of seven (7) years from the original defivery dete or one hundred thousand (100,000) miles, whichever comes first.. The werrenly provides coveraga for
wdkgadehm:amom\etopmalandloroﬂ\erlayefsofpsfm.crawngorcheckhg.andlossarg!asscausadbyctackhg.cheddngorhaztng. All other items are
excluded from coverage by this supplemental paint warrenty. Thewarrsmy&pro-medasfdbwszo—z«xmnms-100%:25-36mcnms-15%;37-48monm-50%:49
— 84 months - 25%

WARRANTY REMEDY:

Owiners sole and exclusive remedy under this warranty shall be repainting of any areas upon which the paint was defective by an authcrized Custom Works warranty factity.
Owner shall bear all expenses arising out of or relating to trensporting the product to the Custom Works facility, if Custom Works falls to repaint the defective portion within a
reasonable tims, then Custom Works shall be llable to the Owner for tha reasonable costs of repainting by a third party without giving Custom Works at least 15 days priot
written notice, during which time Custom Works may repaint the defective paint.

WARRANTY REGISTRATION:
The Owner shall submit or cause the motor vehicla dealer to submit a *Custom Works Warranty Registration” form with 60 calendar days of the original delivery date. This
warrenty is not valld if the Custom Works Waranty Reglstration Form is not sent to Custom Works within 60 days after the date of purchase/delivery to the Owner.

EXCLUSIONS:

The warmranty does nol cover

WMmmmwMammanwmmmmma
Hazhm.dudkkuuhssdglmmedwknmperwa.mmmmhﬂwdmywmmwahm.eggmsmmmwﬂm
Paint deterlorstion caused by abuse, accident, acid rain, chemical fall out or act of nature.

Accidents, scratches, chips, bruises and/or gloss reduction due to nermal use and maintenance.

Custom finishes, exotic finishes or any finish other than standard finish procadures.
Repaksdummwmdas&mﬁrbhedmudmsﬂ!ppedbbaemsﬂuwam

Nermal wear and tear, abuse, accident, neglect, misuse and/or akered/modifind units.

Clalms mado without following procedures of without proper authortzation.

items not specifically designed as covered tems.
mmdmmmmmwmmmmmwmmmasWmm«mdmmmwm.
mmapmsuwammummwbssdm.mmdm.mmm«mm,m

Faiture of finishes contatning less than 100% Axalta approved products.

Faflure of finishes performed by non Axalta Certifiod Refinish Technician. Al Axelta certifications must be cutrent to be acceptable hereunder.

2 8 0 6 060 00 0 00 00

WARRANTY TERMINATION
This warranty shall be void and Custom Works shall be refieved from any and ali obigations hereunder i:
. Owner misusss or neglects the moter vehicla or the components fail to provide reasonable and necessary maintenance, perform or has performed unauthorized
aiterations of the componants.
. The motor vehide is sold or any of the components are removed.
. The vehicle is remounted, unless the remount is performed by Custom Works.
. Owner falis to comply with the warranty registration requirements described above.

CUSTOM WORKS RIGHTS
Cumnwmmmemmdmmmm«memmmmdwmdmpmmmemﬁmwﬁhm These changes will b made with no obligation
to maka coresponding changas to products praviously manufactured.

CLAIM PROCEDURES

Mmmumeeuwubepabmedaxcmwmfaaoquaanauwmfadﬂy. Cuystom Works mus g gl warraniy sen Ring prigr to performance.
mmamimﬁmmumunwnuaswmmmmnwmrmmtnmwmwmbogmﬂ\fwrmmmdaysot:wdptofmﬁﬂmﬂmofddeamado
hwrﬂimlo&‘shnmwmwmnsodaysddbcwmydthadereummuslbeammdbdmhmwnyexﬂmmtboshﬂwmhmmwmm

Owner's name and compiete address,

Owner's contact Information during regudar business hours.

Vehicle [dentification Number (VIN)

Unit modol and Product Number.

Date of purchase and delvery.

Brief description of the problem and current odometer reading.

Photographs are needed i the claim concems any paint or body damage.

DISCLAIMER LIMITATIONS
THIS WARRANTY iS (N LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EXRESSED OR IMPLIED. INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NOTE: APPLIES ONLY TO THE GENERAL ONE YEAR LIMITED WARRANTY AND NOT ANY OTHER OR EXTENDED
WARRANTY OR WARRANTIES MADE BY CUSTOM WORKS. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL. EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, R PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING FROM ANY DEFECT, DELAY, NON-DELIVERY, RECALL, OR OTHER BVREACH BY CUSTOM
WORKS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER ECONOMIC INJURY, CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT
BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE IN TORT FOR ANY NEGLIGENT DESIGN OR MANUFACTURE OR ANY PRODUCTS OR FOR THE OMISSION OF ANY WARNING
WITH RESPECT THERETO.

authodze g4l

® © o o ¢ 0 0

ADDITIONAL TERMS E
muwmmm:mmmwmmmmmwwm&mmmwm Nootherpmymaymod!lyormwthewarmwpmided
w.mmammwmwm«mmmmmmmmm Anyammmmmwsrohmmdmdmﬂandwwm
made in wriling signed by en suthorized officer of Custom Works

CUSTOM TRUCK & BODY WORKS, INC.
13787 WHITE HOUSE ROAD
WOODBURY, GA 30293
888-258-9695




SUPPLEMENTAL ELECTRICAL LIMITED WARRANTY

ELECTRICAL LIMITED WARRANTY:

Custom Truck & Body Works, Ine. (Custom Works) warrants 1o the criginal purchaser ("Owner’) only that the following items of the ambulancelrescus electricel system of the
vehicle shail be frea from substantial defects in materials and workmanship attributable to Custom Works ("Werrantor®) that materiglly impair the value of the motor vehicie
under normal use, maintenance and servica for a period of seven (7) years from the original delivery date or sixty thousand (60,000) milss, whichaver comas first for the
elactrical hamess, hamess Installation and related components. All ather components sre excluded from the coverage of this {imited electrical warranly.

WARRANTY REMEDY:

Owiner's solo and axclusive remedy under this warmranty shall be repair or replacement (at Custom Work's sole option) the defective component by an authorized Custom
Work's warmranty facility. Owner shail bear all expenses asising out of or relating to transportation of the product to the appropriate warranty service location designated by
Custom Works. uomnwmormauﬂmwmm%mm«mﬂawwdefecﬁvemouemmnﬂnawasonab!eﬁtne.hen&mnwmgmﬂbe
tiable for the lesser of () the reasonable cost of repair or replacement by a third party or () that part of the purchase price of the component that shall have been paid by the
Ovwmer to Custom Works, butlhoOvmershallnotobtainrepatrorraplacementbyaﬁrdpaﬂywtﬁ:outglvlngCustomWorksaneast15¢ayapﬂorw:mennotbedumgvm1dl
time Custom Works (or its authorized service facility) may repalr or replace the defective product.

WARRANTY REGISTRATION:
The Owner shall subma or cause the motor vehicle dealer to submit a “Custom Works Warranty Registration” form with 60 calendar days of the original delivery date. This
warranty is not vaild if the Custom Works Warranty Registration Form Is not sent to Custom Works within 60 days after the date of purchase/delivery to the Owner.

EXCLUSIONS:
The warmranty does not cover

*  Non-glectrical comp

. Chassis glectrical system and related components installed by the chassia manufachurer.

. Materials of parts not manufactured by Custom Works. including tut not Emited to batteries, battery chargers, inverisrs, lightbars, siren and similar equipment, tires, tire
balancing, whesl alignment, light buibs. genarator(s), air conditionar(s), radios and powsr canveriers. The menufacturers of these products may provido warrantios
covering performance of thelr particutar products.

Normal wear and tear.

Damage caused by averioading, sbusa, accidant, negiect or misuse.

Components addad of modifled by third parties.

Repla of routit " ltems.

Damage caused by, but not &mited to. collision, fire, thaft or acts of God.

Items not specifically designed as covered 2ems.
mooxpenseelu-empommthepmduatomdfrcmanMmmmmmwwamaamgm«mtosmmxmm
lmexﬂquawmnmmmwsdmmmmdmmmmwag;ngon‘ravamsm.m

WARRANTY TERMINATION
Wmmmummcmwmmmmmwwdmmm
. MMwmmommumWMhmmawmm.parfomorhaaperhmedwmﬂmbed
alterations of the components.
. The motor vehicte is sold or any of the components &re removed.
. The vehicle is remountad, unless the remount is performod by Custom Works.
. mmmmmmmwmmm

CUSTOM WORKS RIGHTS
Cumwmmewesmemmddgmomwmﬂmmwwmmdwolhmmlvcmumawﬁmawizh notica. These changes wil be mada with no ohdigation
to make corresponding changes to products previously manufactured.

CLAIM PROCEDURES
uwmsemmummwmcmwmw«mmmmmm!m Custom Works must authorize all warranty sgryi Ring prior to performancs,
wmenmmnmwmmmummmmwmummmmwummmmmmdmdmtrm«weamadah
wmmmwmwnhmmmawamamwmumwmumwmmmmmmmm

Owner's name and complets address.

Owner's contact information during regudar business hours.

Vehicla Identification Number (VIN)

Unit model and Product Number.

Date of purchase and defivery.

Brief description of tho problem and current odometer reading.

Photographs are neaded I the claim concems any paint or body damage.

DISCLAIMER LIMITATIONS
THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EXRESSED OR [MPLIED. INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPUED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NOTE: APPLIES ONLY TO THE GENERAL ONE YEAR LIMITED WARRANTY AND NOT ANY OTHER OR EXTENDED
WARRANTY OR WARRANTIES MADE BY CUSTOM WORKS, CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL. EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, R PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING FROM ANY DEFECT, BELAY, NON-DELIVERY, RECALL, OR OTHER BVREACH BY CUSTOM
WORKS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER ECONOMIC INJURY. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT
BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE IN TORT FOR ANY NEGLIGENT DESIGN OR MANUFACTURE OR ANY PRODUCTS OR FOR THE OMISSION OF ANY WARNING
WITH RESPECT THERETO.

" ®» e 0 00 00

*® & o 0 o 08

ADDITIONAL TERMS

mswmwwévlmmncfwmwrcwwOwnsrmaydsohaveamsaiﬁghmu\atvaryﬁmﬂa&ewam. No other party may modify or expand the wamranty provided
w.mwdmwm«mwdmauummnmmmmmpmdum Any statements to the contrary are horeby rendered mdl and void unless
mads In writing signed by an authorized officer of Custom Works

CUSTOM TRUCK & BODY WORKS, INC.
13787 WHITE HOUSE ROAD
WOODBURY, GA 30283
888-258-9695




SUPPLEMENTAL TWENTY YEAR STRUCTURAL LIMITED WARRANTY

STRUCTURAL BODY LIMITED WARRANTY:

Custom Truck & Body Works, inc. (Custom Works) warrants to the ariginal purchaser ("Owmer) only that each new aluminum body is structurally sound and free of all defects
of both materia) and workmanship and further warrants thal R wil maintain such structural integrity and remaln fres of damage due to rusting for twenty (20) years from the
origina! defivery date.

WARRANTY REMEDY:

Owner’s solo and exclusiva remedy under this warranty shall be repair or replacement (8t Custom Work's sola option) the defective component by an authorized Custom
Work's warranty facifity. Owner shail bear sil axpenses arising out of or relating to transportation of the product to the appropriate warranty service location designated by
Customn Works. IfOusmWorksotEsanmatzedWfaﬂiwmwm&mmwdsfw&vemmnemmmamasonab&aﬁnw.thenCmmWorks shall be
liable for the lasser of i) the reasonable cost of repair or replacament by a third perty or (ii) that part of the purchase price of tho component that shall have been paid by the
Ovimer to Custom Works. but the Owner shall not obtain repalr or replacement by a thind party without giving Custom Works &t least 15 days pricr written natice during which
time Custom Works (or its authorized service facillty) may repair or repiace the defective product.

WARRANTY REGISTRATION:
The Owner shall submit or cause the motor vehicle dealer t submit a "Custom Works Warranty Registration” form with 60 calendar days of the original delivery date. This
warranly is not valid if the Custom Works Warranty Registration Form Is not sent to Custom Works within 60 days after the date of purchase/delivery to the Owner.

EXCLUSIONS:

The warranly does not cover

Mmuiabupmmmwuyc.smwmmmmmmmmsmeIMnmcmnmmmmuamm.
Normal wear and tear.

Damage d by improper loading. overlcading. abuse, neglect or misuse.

Components added or modified by third parties.

Dmmuuw.mw&nmw.mmm.mmm“mam

ttems not spacifically designed as coverad Rams.
Themscoiuarwmﬁmmepmduttomlmmanam&adgavteeoemﬁummdsummmmfmwmwloswhmacnaﬂon.
lmumwchmmmummmmdm.mmmam,mmw&gwmdmm

WARRANTY TERMINATION
This warranty shall be void and Custorn Works shall be refieved from any and all obbgations hereunder ¥:
. mmbtmanegmmmvehuowﬂamm@mwﬂemmnbhwwmmpetfotmorhsapedmmdmuw
alterations of thae components.
. The motor vehicle is soid or any of the components are removed.
. The veticle Is remountsd, unless tha remount is performed by Custom Works.
. mmwmmmmwmwm«.

CUSTOM WORKS RIGHTS
Custom Works reserves the unrestricted rigmoﬂuamﬂmﬂwmnwmdeﬁgnelmmmmmwﬁmmm These changes will ba made with no cbilgation
10 make comesponding changes to products previously manufactured.

CLAIM PROCEDURES
Al warranty service shall be performed at Custom Works factory or at an authorized service facility. Custo orks must authorize g warranly servica in writing pror {o pedformance,
Written authorization instructing the Owner as to where and when to deliver the product for warmanty service will be given with four (4) working days of recelpt of notification of defect made
in writing to Custom Works within 30 days of discovery of the defect and must be submitted before the warranty expires. Notice shall contain the following information:
. Owner's name and complete address.
Owner's contact Inf tion during regutar busl hours.
Vehicie Identification Number (VIN)
Unit model and Product Number.
Date of purchase and delivery.
Brief description of the problom and current odometer reading.
Photographs are nesded if the claim concems any paint or body damage.

DISCLAIMER LIMITATIONS
THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EXRESSED OR IMPLIED. INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPUED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABIUTY
AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NOTE: APPLIES ONLY TO THE GENERAL ONE YEAR LIMITED WARRANTY AND NOT ANY OTHER OR EXTENDED
WARRANTY OR WARRANTIES MADE BY CUSTOM WORKS. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL. EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, R PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING FROM ANY DEFECT, DELAY, NON-DELIVERY, RECALL, OR OTHER BVREACH BY CUSTOM
WORKS INCLUDING BUT NOT UMITED TO FERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER ECONOMIC INJURY. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT
BE I.!ARBELg TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE IN TORT FOR ANY NEGLIGENT DESIGN OR MANUFACTURE OR ANY PRODUCTS OR FOR THE OMISSION OF ANY WARNING
WITH PECT THERETO.

e o 0 0 @ o

ADDITIONAL TERMS
Mmmmmmmmmemmaxmhmsmmmxmymwwmm No other party may modily or expand the weranty provided
m_mwdmmwnumwmﬂMwwmmm pect to the products. Any staf 1o tho contrery are haroby rendered null and void unless

made in writing signed by an authorized officer of Custom Works

CUSTOM TRUCK & BODY WORKS, INC.
13787 WHITE HOUSE ROAD
WGOODBURY, GA 30293
888-258-9695




SUPPLEMENTAL CONVERSION LIMITED WARRANTY

CONVERSION LIMITED WARRANTY:

Custom Truck & Body Works, Inc. (Custom Works) warrants to the original purchaser ("Owner”) only that the conversion components of the vehicle shall be free from
substantial defects in materials and workmanship attributable to Custom Works ("Wairantor®) that the materially impalr the value of the vehicle which arise under normal use,
maintenancs and service for a period of four (4) years from the original delivery date or forty-gight thousand (48,000) miles, whichever comes first.

WARRANTY REMEDY:

Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy under this wamranty shall be repair or replacement (at Custom Work's sole opticn) the defective componant by an authorized Custom
Work's warrenty faciiity. Owner shall bear all expensas arising out of or ralating to transportation of the product to the appropriate warranty service location designated by
Custom Works. i Custom Works or its authorized service facllity falis to repalr or replace any defoctive component within a reasonable time, then Custom Works shali be
liable for the lesser of (i) the reasonable cost of repalr or replacement by a third pasty or (i) that part of the purchase price of the component that shall have been pald by the
Owmer to Custom Works, but the Owner shall not obtain repalr or replacement by a third party without giving Custom Works at least 15 days prior written notice during which
time Custom Works (or its authorized service faciity) may repair or replace the defective product.

WARRANTY REGISTRATION:
The Owner shall submit or cause the motor vehicle dealsr to submit a “Custom Woerks Warranty Registration” form with 60 calendar days of the original delivery date. This
warranty is not valld if the Custom Works Warranty Registration Form {s not sent to Custom Works within 60 days after the date of purchase/delivery to the Owner.

EXCLUSIONS:
The warranty does not cover

. Damage to the selid trim and detall items due io normal use, wear and (ear of exposure o the elements

. Accessories or parts not manufactured by Custom Works, which includa but it not limited to . tha chassls and its component parts, tires, tire balancing, wheel afignment,
inverters, sirans, light bulbs, lightbars, battary chargers, generators, radios. power converters end batteries. The fact of thesa products may provide wamanly

covering the performance of thelr particular products.

Normal waar and tear.

Damage caused by overicading, abuse, accident, neglect or misuse.

Componenis added or modified by third panies.

Repiacement of routine maintenance iems.

Damage caused by, but nat Emited to, collision, five, thelt or acts of God.

Itams nat spacifically designed as covered fems.

The expenss of transporting the product to and from an authortzed service centsr for sarvice and all expensss anising fram or related 1o such transportstion,

Incidantsl expenses such a3 but not limaad to loss of uss, inconvenience, loss of tima, vehicle rental, lodging or trave! costs, etc.

WARRANTY TERMINATION
This warranty shail be void and Custom Works shall be relieved from any and afl obligations hereunder if;
. Ownsr misuses or naglects the motor vehicle or the components fall to provide reasonable and y mal peiform or has perf unauthorized
alterations of the components.
. The motor vehicle Is sold or any of the components are removed.
. Owner fails to comply with the warranty registration requirements described above.

CUSTOM WORKS RIGHTS
c::smwmreumsmemamed@mwmmwmmmmdbmmmmﬁmmm Thesa changes will be made with no obligation
to make corresponding changes to products p ly factured.

CLAIM PROCEDURES
ice shail be p d at Custom Works factory or at an authorized service facility. Custos
wmmnwmmmaammandvmeowmmmmwmmmmmwwmmdmudmmamm«h
writing to Custom Works within 30 days of disoovery of the defect and must be submitted before the warranty expires. Notice shall contain the following information:
Ownier's name and complets address.
Owner's contact information during regular business hours.
Vehicle identification Number (VIN)
Unit model and Product Number.
Date of purchase and delivery.
Brief description of the problem and cument odometer reading.
Photographs are needed if the clalm concorns any paint or body damage.

DISCLAIMER LIMITATIONS
THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EXRESSED OR IMPLIED. INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NOTE: APPLIES ONLY TO THE GENERAL ONE YEAR LIMITED WARRANTY AND NOT ANY OTHER OR EXTENDED
WARRANTY OR WARRANTIES MADE BY CUSTOM WORKS. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL. EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, R PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING FROM ANY DEFECT, DELAY, NON-DELIVERY, RECALL, OR OTHER BVREACH BY CUSTOM
WORKS INCLUDING BUT NOT UMITED TO PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER ECONOMIC INJURY. CUSTOM WORKS SHALL NOT
BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR ANYONE ELSE IN TORT FOR ANY NEGLIGENT DESIGN OR MANUFACTURE OR ANY PRODUCTS OR FOR THE OMISSION OF ANY WARNING
WITH RESPECT THERETO.

ADDITIONAL TERMS

This warmanty provides Owner with spacific rights and Owner may also hava additional rights that vary from state to state. No ather party may modify or axpand the warranty provided
herein, walve any of its limitations or make any difforent or additional warranties with respect to the products. Any statements to the contrary are hereby rendered null and vold unless
mada in writing signed by an authorized officer of Custom Works

® 6 0 0 0 0

CUSTOM TRUCK & BODY WORKS, INC.
13787 WHITE HOUSE ROAD
WOODBURY, GA 30293
888-258-9695































2022 OSAGE “2156” WARRIOR” TYPE 1
2022 FORD “F-450”
STANDARD FEATURES

e MEMBER AMD / NTEA & FORD QVM PROGRAM ¢
o CERTIFIED KKK-1822-F & ALL REVISIONS ¢

¢ CERTIFIED CAAS GVS V2.0 ¢
CHASSIS
¢ 2022 Ford F-450 w/ 47A Amb Prep Pkg  Rear Mud Flaps
e 169” Wheel Base w/ Dual Rear Wheels ¢ Dual Air Bags
s GVWR: 16,500 LBS o Dual Map Lights

« Front & Rear Stabilizer Bar

» 6.7 L Turbo Diesel w/ Ford Block Heater

o Ford Engine Hour Meter

¢ Ford Auxiliary Idler Control Unit

¢ Torqshift™ w/ SelectShift 10-Speed
Automatic Transmission

« 4-Wheel Disc Brakes w/ ABS

o Stainless Steel Wheel Inserts

o Aluminum Diamond Plate Running Boards

o Module Dimensions:
156" Lx87"Hx 96" W
o Totally “Seamless” Body Construction
o Exterior Side & Roof Panels .125” Aluminum
« One-Piece Exterior Side Panels
e One-Piece Crowned Roof
e Frame Members 2" x 2” Aluminum Tubing
o Frame Members on 127 Centers
« Diamond Plate Shields:
* Across Lower Rear of Body
* Across Lower Front of Body
* Lower 1/3 of Entry Doors
o All Exterior Doors “Pan-Formed™ / Extruded
Double Break Construction

o Tilt Steering Wheel & Cruise Control

o Electric Windows & Door Locks

¢ Keyless Remote Entry

o AM/FM Stereo Clock Radio w/ CD

o Deluxe Cloth High Back Captain’s Chairs

o Rubber Floor Mat 1.L.O. Carpet

e Ford OEM Mirrors, Heated and Power Adjust
e Daytime Running Lights

e Choice of 2WD

MODULE

o All Body Openings “Seamless™

o All Door Latches Mounted Behind Gaskets

o Exterior Compartment @ Front Left for
Storage of Oxygen Tank and Back Boards

e Optional Curbside Backboard Storage

o Exterior Compartment Adjustable Shelving

o Exterior Compartment LED Lighting

e Cast “Grabber” Door Holders

o Lower Body Impact Rub Rails

o Polished Stainless Steel Fenderettes

* Grip Strut Rear Step Bumper w/ Flip-up Center
Section 4" x 18” Dock Bumpers

« Automotive Undercoating

WARNING SYSTEM

o Two Red Whelen ION-T LED’s Mounted in
Chrome Flanges in Grill

o Two Red Whelen ION-T LED’S Mounted in
Chrome Flanges in Front Fenders

» Eight Red LED Whelen M9 Modular Lights

o One Clear LED Whelen M9 Front Modular Light

» Two Optic LED Whelen M9 Rear Load Lights

» Primary / Secondary Switching

e Carson SA 400 Siren w/ Siren / Horn Switch

e Cast Siren Speaker

e Rear DOT Lighting Whelen LED 4x6 w/
Chrome Flanges: Red Tail / Brake,

e One Amber LED Whelen M9 Rear Medular Light Amber Arrow Tum, Reverse
o Two Optic LED Whelen M9 Scene Lights per Side o LED Clearance / Marker Lights
PAINT & MARKINGS

« red Paint all over to match Race Red Chassis o “No Smoking” & “Fasten Seat Belt” Signs

Page 1 of 2 10/28/2019




o Base Coat / Clear Coat Modular Paint o Ambulance / Star-of-Life Decals

Page 2 of 2 10/28/2019







Page 4 of 2

Upgrades

All Box Lights upgraded to Whelen M Series
Remote head Siren with Dual Amps

LED Rope Lighting in exterior compartments
1,000 watt Inverter with Separate charger

20 Amp Auto eject shoreline

Two USB outlets

Power locks on all compartment and patient doors
External Condenser mounted on front of module
Separate Compressor for Rear A/C

Back Up Camera

Zico Quick release spare O2 bottle holders

6 point Harness for all seated positions

Cargo Net at head of squad Bench

All Aluminum interior cabinets

Non wood sub floor

Additional Glove storage

Dropped Skirtline

Wet Sand and Buff

Power Pro Cot w/ Built in Charging in cot mount
Rear Chevron High Visibility

10/28/2019







SAFETY-VIS)

WHELEN M9

/_ima) SMART LED
CLR) LENSE
56/ Y

AUX CONDEN WHELEN M9 (2) WHELEN M9 LED CRERA
| IR-\ /'(cm) SMART LED (g)so v)mgi?m"fm . (LR LoAD LiGHTE
\ 96 7 V() Lenses AN
3
OO OO
(2) WHELEN 1ON-T ‘D
|, (RED) LEDS

(O] W=

NOTES: THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE.
CHARACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED PRODUCT MAY VARY.

NOTES:

1.) COMPARTMENT DIMENSIONS REFLECT OPENING CLEARANCE.
2.; APPROXIMATE COMPARTMENT DEPTH=20 1/2°DEEP.

3.) MODULE DIMENSIONS=156"L x 96"W x 93°H

4.) INTERIOR MODULE HEAD ROOMm=72"H.

ALL 9x7 LIGHTS TO BE WHELEN M9 SERIES LIGHTS, CHROME FLANGES.

5.
8.; DOUBLE STAINLESS THRESHOLDS.
7.) STYROFOAM INSULATION, WALLS & CEILING.

LED RUNNING
|/ BOARD LIGHTS

2) WHELEN N6
SED7i—i—24} w"{ma)l.sns

(2) WHELEN M6
(RED) LEDS

N (2) WHELEN M6
\‘cuz) LEDS

8.) TECHNIQUE LED STRIP-LIGHTS IN ALL COMPARTMENTS. Stock/Jobg: 0315577V s 100a ICust- App’v/Datef ]Deﬂi'r App'v/Date:
8.) DRY-DECK IN ALL COMPARTMENTS. Osags Dedler: £ — :
b TEN-8 FIRE (Osage |ndustries, |nc.
) DEMO |TWINRIDGE RO, : F.O.BOX718 LINN.MO. 65031
B By: Date: Scale:
3 NOTICE rawn =¥ S.A.H.I o 08-23-21 u%OT TO_SCALE
2 This drawing and/or the information Drawing Description: Revision
hereon is the exclusive property of Osage
1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21| SAH . lndusﬁcsandaha“notbemproduccd, EXTER|OR LAYOUT. FRONT/ REAR ’I
s T 3 used or disclosed without the authorized -
Rev.# Revision Description Date [Rev'd|APP' VG wrcanconsensof Qe st TYPE=! WARRIOR




2) WHELEN M9
RED; SMART LEDS
LENSES

(2) WHELEN M9 LED
(CLR) SCENE LIGHTS"\

156

om

SHORELINE ND:

ONINREVERSE-—G

12V PRE-WRE:

NOTES: THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE.

CHARACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED PRODUCT MAY VARY.
NOTES:

1.) COMPARTMENT DIMENSIONS REFLECT OPENING CLEARANCE.

2.2 APPROXIMATE COMPARTMENT DEPTHw20 t/2°DEEP.

3.

4.

MODULE DIMENSIONS=156"L x S6™W x 93"H
INTERIOR MODULE HEAD ROOM=72°H.
5.) ALL 9x7 LGHTS TO BE WHELEN M9 SERIES LIGHTS, CHROME FLANGES.

73 STYROFOAM INSULATION, WALLS 4 caL
. f , ING. g g v
&g 'rzcu-tmguAEMLgo sm?l::‘u&%ﬁn ALL COMPARTMENTS. Stock/Jobg: 43155 Drowing#J3 551008 lCust. App’v/Date# IDeul r App'v/Date:
9.) DRY-DECK IN ALL COMPARTMENTS. Gsage Dedler: 4 pun :
oo [EN=8 FIRE sa %c ]ndustrlcs, ]nc.
: DEMO|TWINRIDGE ROA P.O.BOX718 LINN, MO. 65051
3 NOTICE Drawn By: Date: Scale:
S.A.H. 08—-23-21 T TO SCALE
2 REVISION DRAFT 08-24—21] SAH T his drawing and/or the information Drawing Description: Revislong |
hereon is the exclusive pro of Osage
1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21| SAH . Industries and sl'la“notbereproduced, EXTERIOR LAYOUT, STREETSIDE ’l
Y T 3 Y used or disclosed without the authorized TYPE—' WARR'OR
Rev.# Revision Description Date [Rev'd/APP’Vd| wristen consent of Osage Industrca.










ANGLE TO MATCH
ACTION WALL‘\
48 -.4}——-
LOCKING
"BULKHEAD"
5X17 02 ACCESS—. 16
CUSHION
CUSHION
AFE' DOORS
12V PRE-WIRE—| "as O = -
X P ADJUSTABLE
AN + |_~"SHELF
! wd
I 2513
71 i
I: 544
j P |_—CAFE' DOORS
g 1y ADJUSTABLE
L _—"SHELF
27 : -
COMPARTMENT] Lu 25}
8%
21 -—14;7Z 204 35§
913
/
E.V.S. 6—-PT. CHILD/ATTENDANT SEAT-
gg;ERs:c .'rI'EHéSS gRAwm% |g N&T TO SCALE. RODUC
ACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED PRODUCT MAY VARY.
Stock/Jab Drawing# Cust. 'v/Date Deal’r App’v/Date:
NOTES: CABINET DEPTHS REPRESENT DIMENSION FRCM - /o f J3155 J3155-102| Aop'v/Datof I PpY/D .
INSIDE REAR TO FRONT FACE OF CABINETS, WITHOUT TRIM. sage Dealer: ;
ACTUAL WORKING DEPTH WILL BE LESS THAN DIMENSION et EN=8 FIRE OsaA%C lnclus’mes, ]nC'
SHOWN UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. : DEMO |TWINRIDGE RO P.O.BOX 718 LINN, MO. 63031
Drawn By: Date: Scale:
3 NOTICE ¥ sa | oa—z:s-m[ NOT TO SCALE
2 This drawing and/or the information Drawing Description: | Revision# |
hereon is the exclusive property of Osage
1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21| saH . | Industries and shall not be reproduced, FORWARD INTERIOR »]
— — - - ed or disclosed without the authorized -
Rev.# Revision Description Date RevVAAPP VA| e o O heeoiens® TYPE=I WARRIOR







7

ZOLATONE

713

8} ;
& a]
—18%0.D. l=—
(]
(]
CARGO NET—| l
] /
< 74
I
464
)
8 [
'
! |
[ - — - c— o —
| | (SEamLESS cusHi
jpannnnae
alt.t.* X x ot
17 |"" >*++0 *0‘0
Hr + 4
+ + ¢ ¢t
F + ¢+ At P+
L I 2K K I N R IR BR
P"A¢ + 4“4"'0.4“4' +
21— 4

NOTES: THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE.
CHARACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED PRODUCT MAY VARY.

NOTES: CABINET DEPTHS REPRESENT DIMENSION FROM
INSIDE REAR TO FRONT FACE OF CABINETS, WITHOUT TRIM.
ACTUAL WORKING DEPTH WILL BE LESS THAN DIMENSION

\(2)

10X53X33

GLOVE STORAGE

Stock/Job#

J3155

[Drawin ;
of 3155-108 |Cust. App’v/Datef

|Deal'r App'v/Date:

Osage Dealer:

SHOWN UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. Tt L0 FIRE sage l n d ustries, l nc.
) DEMO [TWINRIDGE. RO P.O.BOX 718 LINN, MO. é3051
] Ib : }
3 NOTICE‘ Orawn By S.A.H. ote 08-23-21 |§0 el:!OT TO SCALE
2 T Tis drawing and)/or the information Drawing Description: TRevislond |
hereon is the exclusive property of Osage
1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21| SAH .| Industries and shall not be reproduced, REARWARD INTERIOR »]
] T Y used or disclosed without the authorized -




150%

"REARWARD ENTRY"

S.S. GRAB RAIL

(8) WHELEN ROUND_/

LED DOME LIGHTS

443 33 46 26—
223 24 24 24
T THIS ROW WREL
TAS CHECK-—DUT$H
o -0~ -0 o o -0~ < o < o 91%
~d ”BULKHEAD”_\
/ /-"RIGHTWALL"

60" S.S. GRAB RAIL‘/

NOTES: THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE.

CHARACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED
PRODUCT MAY VARY.

21
"CURBSIDE ENTRY"

Stock /Job# J3155

Drawin ¥
ot J3155-105 lc‘m’, App'v/Datef

Osage Dedler:
TEN—-8 FIRE

|Deql‘r App'v/Date:

End Customer:

TWINRIDGE ROA

sa§c Industries, |nc.
_

P.O.BOX718 LINN,MO. 63031
3 3 Scale:
3 NOTICE‘ rawn By S.A.H. ‘ 08-23—-21 o eN()'l' TO SCALE
2 [ his drawing and/or the information Drawing Description: Ravigiond
hercon s the exclusive property of Osage

1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21 SAH . | Industries and shall not be repraduced, CEILING LAYOUT 1

P Y s d or disclosed without the authorized -
Rev.f Revision Description Date Rev AP VA rrrcersens ot O bt TYPE-1 WARRIOR




"PATIENT ENTRY"'\

PRODUCT MAY VARY.

NOTES: THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE.
CHARACTERISTICS AND DIMENSIONS OF FINISHED

FLIP—UP PLEXIGLAS LIDS _/
TO SHARPS & WASTE

473 27 49 264—
]
21 s |
R 367
49 ]
% NOTES: 20& 91%
| | 1.) LON_PLATE FLOORING, #424 TX GUNPOWER. _
2.) STRYKER UNIVERSAL FLOOR PLATE ONLY.
3.) COMPOSITE FLOORING. /—2ND STEP
| SEET 3o}
21 SEAMLESS CUSHION }{ SEAMLESS CUSHION @ RIOOOOONXRRNNN
24 9
vv4 ._22%_...‘

"CURBSIDE ENTRY”"

Stock/Job#

Oscge Dedler:

Drawin 3 5
o# S155-108 |Cust App’'v/Datef

|Deol'r App'v/Date:

End Customer:

saéc [ndustries, Inc.
P.O.BOX718

LINN, MO. 505§

QEMQ_BﬂN RIDGE RO,
3 NOTICE B Al 08—23-21 0T To SCALE
2 REVISION DRAFT 08—24—-21] SAH T his drawing and/or the information Drawing Description: Ravislon#
h is the exclusive property of Osage
1 PRODUCTION DRAFT 08-23-21| SAH . Industries and shall not be reproduccd. FLOOR LAYOU T 1
" T ; sed or disclosed without the authorized TYPE—-| WARRIOR
ReV.# ReVlSiOI'I Descrlpt|on DOte ReV d APP’Vd :vrittcn consent of Oaa;;e Industries.














































Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC
Department: Board of Commissioners
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: 2021 Capital Improvements Element Annual Update

Summary:

A Work Session was held on October 25, 2021 to review and discuss updates to the 2020 CIE Reports.
Staff has incorporated the changes and prepared for Board review a preliminary draft of an annual
update to the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work Program for FY 2021 in accordance

with the Development Impact Fee Compliance Requirements established by the Georgia Department of
Community Affairs.

Background:
The Georgia Department of Community Affairs requires Counties that participate in the Impact Fee

Program to submit an annual update of the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work
Program. NEGRC provides an initial review and then submits to the DCA for State review.

Cost:

Recommended Motion:
Board Discretion



Jasper County BOC
Impact Fee Fund

Fiscal Year 2021

Annual Impact Fee Financial Report

Public Facility Library Parks Fire Jail Sheriff E911 Admin Total
Allocation Percentage 2% 20% 19% 17% 22% 18% 2% 100%
Service Area Countywide  Countywide  Countywide  Countywide  Countywide  Countywide
Impact Fee Balance:

6/30/2020 3,090.53 95,730.88 44,414.02 81,372.32 105,304.75 86,159.25 - 416,071.74
Impact Fees Collected:
7/1/2020 thru 6/30/2021 4,296.24 42,951.48 40,804.92 36,510.24 47,247.72 38,658.36 4,296.22 214,765.18
Accrued Interest 4.70 46.97 44.62 39.92 51.67 42.27 4.70 234.85
Subtotal: Fee Accounts 7,391.47 138,729.33 85,263.57 117,922.48 152,604.13 124,859.88 4,300.92 631,071.77
Impact Fees Refunds
Expenditures {84,000.00) (121.72) (84,121.72)
Impact Fee Balance:

6/30/2021 7,391.47 138,729.33 85,263.57 117,922.48 152,604.13 40,859.88 4,179.20 546,950.05
Impact Fes Encumbered 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


















Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC
Department: Finance Department
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: Open New Bank Account for the Food Bank - 2021 CDBG Grant

Summary:
Finance requests to open a new bank account to be used specifically for receiving and disbursing the
2021 CDBG Grant proceeds.

Background:

The Department of Community Affairs requires a non-interest bearing bank account be established to
receive the drawdown of funds from the CDBG Grant. This bank account will be utilized to pay vendor
invoices approved and administered by the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission.

The Jasper County 2019 CDBG Grant was banked with Bank of Monticello. Management proposes to
bank the Jasper County 2021 CDBG Grant with Bank of Monticello.

Cost:
N/A

Recommended Motion:
Authorize Chairman to sign the Bank of Monticello new account agreement.



New Business —Item

Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC

Department: Finance
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: FY 2022 1% Quarter Financial Report

Summary:

Staff will present a Financial Report for 1% Quarter FY2022.

Background:

Cost:
None

Recommended Motion:
None Required



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2022 1ST QUARTER
FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2022

FUND FY 2022 FY 2022 % %
# BUDGET ACTUAL  COLLECTED REMAINING
100 GENERAL FUND -
LINE # REVENUE

1 ADVALOREM PROPERTY TAX $ 6,361,190 $ 2,477,053  38.9% 61.1%
2 VEHICLE & MOBILE HOME TAX $ 1,028091 $ 199,204  19.4% 80.6%
3 PRIOR YEARS TAX $ 291,000 $ 78,037  26.8% 73.2%
4 FOREST LAND PROTECTION GRANT $ 470,778 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
5 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX $ 875000 $ 180,623  20.6% 79.4%
6 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX $ 828,000 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
7 TAX COMISSIONER COMMISSION $ 235000 $ 87,088  37.1% 62.9%
8 TIMBER TAX $ 50,000 $ 7,669  15.3% 84.7%
9 RAILROAD TAX $ 33,000 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
10 REAL ESTATE TRANFER TAX $ 64,000 $ 18258  28.5% 71.5%
11 INTANGIBLE TAX $ 190,000 $ 68360  36.0% 64.0%
12 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX $ 65000 $ 10,583  16.3% 83.7%
13 BUSINESS LICENSE TAX $ 25,000 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
14 ENERGY EXCISE TAX $ 4,500 $ 2,341 52.0% 48.0%
15 SPECIAL DIGEST - STANTON SPRINGS $ - $ -

16 OTHER TAXES $ 750 $ 103 13.7% 86.3%
17 PENALTIES & INTEREST $ 117000 $ 27,059  23.1% 76.9%
18 EMS $ 340,000 $ 93,794  27.6% 72.4%
19 PROBATE COURT $ 165000 $ 38745  23.5% 76.5%
20 SUPERIOR COURT $ 190,000 $ 53,485  28.1% 71.9%
21 SHERIFF S 39,000 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
22 JAIL $ 8,500 $ 4,068  47.9% 52.1%
23 RECREATION $ 48,000 $ 2,449  5.1% 94.9%
24 PLANNING & ZONING $ 177,400 $ 46,725  26.3% 73.7%
25 EMA $ 7,355 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
26 ANIMAL CONTROL $ 5,550 $ 220 4.0% 96.0%
27 FIRE DISTRICT - JCWSA $ 48000 $ 15433  32.2% 67.8%
28 CARES GRANT $ - S -

29 FOREST WILDLIFE GRANT $ 30,000 $ - 0.0% 100.0%
30 INTEREST $ 14,000 $ 1,469  10.5% 89.5%
31 FAMILY CONNECTION GRANT $ - S -

32 OTHER REVENUE 3 - § 18,846

33 SENIOR CENTER $ 159,500 $ 23646  14.8% 85.2%
34 TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $ 11,870,614 $ 3,455257  29.1% 70.9%

FY 2022 FY 2022 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL  EXPENDED  UNENCUMBERED
DEPT # EXPENDITURES

35 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 2,041,632 § 441289  21.6% 78.4%
36 200 JUDICIAL $ 930,023 $ 193,521  20.8% 79.2%
37 300 PUBLIC SAFETY $ 5,160,977 $ 1,020,045  19.8% 80.2%
38 400 PUBLIC WORKS $ 2,007,719 $ 445584  22.2% 77.8%
39 600 CULTURE/RECREATION $ 547,208 $ 116462  21.3% 78.7%
40 700 HOUSING & DEVELOPMENT S 327910 $ 72,819  22.2% 77.8%
41 900 APPROPRIATIONS $ 349354 $ 78009  22.3% 77.7%
42 950 COMPONENT UNITS $ 673423 $ 168356  25.0% 75.0%
43 900 CAPITAL TRANSFER $ -8 -

44 TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES S 12,038,246 $ 2,536,085  21.1% 78.9%

=== === DU ———-




JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FY2022 1ST QUARTER
FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2022
FY 2022 FY 2022 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED
DEPT# EXPENDITURES
LINE # 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT-

45 01110 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS $ 263,749 $ 72,012 27.3% 72.7%
46 01300 EXECUTIVE $ 205,750 $ 43,251 21.0% 79.0%
47 01400 ELECTIONS $ 30,779 S 1,990 6.5% 93.5%
48 01401 REGISTRAR $ 69,137 $ 15,313 22.1% 77.9%
49 01510 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION $ 199,523 $ 29,024 14.5% 85.5%
50 01540 HUMAN RESOURCES $ 104,650 $ 12,888 12.3% 87.7%
51 01545 TAX COMMISSIONER $ 253,836 $ 49,831 19.6% 80.4%
52 01150 TAX ASSESSOR $ 318824 § 60,017 18.8% 81.2%
53 01565 GOV'T BUILDINGS $ 166,088 $ 46,918 28.2% 71.8%
54 80000 DEBT SERVICE $ 429,296 $ 110,044 25.6% 74.4%
55 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT $2,041,632 S 441,289 21.6% 78.4%

200 JUDICIAL-
56 02150 SUPERIOR COURT $ 409,023 $ 88,782 21.7% 78.3%
57 02200  DISTRICT ATTORNEY $ 57,036 S 8,803 15.4% 84.6%
58 02400 MAGISTRATE COURT $ 138,836 S 33,391 24.1% 75.9%
59 02450 PROBATE COURT $ 202,262 $ 33,217 16.4% 83.6%
60 02600 JUVENILE COURT S 5,000 $ 542 10.8% 89.2%
61 03100 COURTS: OTHER COSTS $ 117,866 S 28,786 24.4% 75.6%
62 TOTAL JUDICIAL $ 930,023 $§ 193,521 20.8% 79.2%

300 PUBLIC SAFETY-
63 03300 SHERIFF $2,536,643 S 478,209 18.9% 81.1%
64 03326 JAIL $1,015987 $ 212,536 20.9% 79.1%
65 03360 COURTHOUSE SECURITY $ 113,563 $ 21,618 19.0% 81.0%
66 03550 FIRE RESCUE $1,296,952 S 271,236 20.9% 79.1%
67 03700 CORONER $ 25895 S 5,776 22.3% 77.7%
68 03900 ANIMAL CONTROL $ 157,474 $ 29,193 18.5% 81.5%
69 03920 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT $ 14463 $ 1,478 10.2% 89.8%
70 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY $5,160,977 $ 1,020,045 19.8% 80.2%
71 400 PUBLIC WORKS-ROADS AND BRIDGES $2,007,719 $§ 445,584 22.2% 77.8%

600 CULTURE/RECREATION-
72 06100 RECREATION- $ 292,575 S 58,654 20.0% 80.0%
73 06200 SENIOR CENTER $ 254,633 S 57,808 22.7% 77.3%
74 TOTAL CULTURE/RECREATION S 547,208 $ 116,462 21.3% 78.7%

700 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT-
75 07100 COUNTY EXTENSION SERVICE S 66887 S 5,515 8.2% 91.8%
76 07410 PLANNING AND ZONING $ 261,023 $ 67,304 25.8% 74.2%
77 TOTAL HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT $ 327,910 $ 72,819 22.2% 77.8%




JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FY2022 1ST QUARTER
FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2022
FY 2022 FY 2022 % %

100  GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL  EXPENDED  UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES

900  APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY-
78 572015 JASPER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL $ 14,000 $ 2,257 16.1% 83.9%
79 572030 DEPT OF FAMILY AND CHILDRENS SERVICES $ 10,375 $ 2,594  25.0% 75.0%
80 572060 CONSERVATION S 3,000 $ 750  25.0% 75.0%
81 572070 JC BOARD OF EDUCATION $ 32,500 $ 3,520 10.8% 89.2%
82 572080 PUTNAM-JASPER SUPPORT SERVICES S 5760 $ 1,440 25.0% 75.0%
83 572100 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY 3 96,943 $ 24,236 25.0% 75.0%
84 572101 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY - 2% LOST $ 17,500 $ 3,612 20.6% 79.4%
85 572110 GA FORESTRY $ 15,876 $ 15,876  100.0% 0.0%

572175 PUBLIC FACILITY AUTHORITY 3 10,000 $ 2,600 26.0% 74.0%

86 572179 FAMILY CONNECTION $ 8,500 $ 2,125  25.0% 75.0%
87 572180 FAMILY CONNECTION 3 48,000 S 8,000 16.7% 83.3%
88 572190 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE S 44,000 $ 11,000 25.0% 75.0%
89 572200 FOUR COUNTY DEV AUTHORITY S - S -
90 573000 JCSWA $ 42,900 S - 0.0% 100.0%
91 579000 CONTINGENCY & PAYROLL CONTINGENCY $ - S -
92 579200 911 AUTH PAYROLL CONTINGENCY S - S -
93 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY $ 349,354 § 78,009  22.3% 77.7%

950 COMPONENT UNITS-
94 611200 JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 3 57,517 $ 14,379  25.0% 75.0%
95 611300 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY $ 107,513 § 26,878  25.0% 75.0%
96 611400 E911 JOINT COUNTY AUTHORITY $ 362,715 $ 90,679  25.0% 75.0%
97 612500 TRANSFER TO SENIOR CENTER $ -8 -
98 612540 TRANSFER TO LANDFILL $ 159,780 $ 39,945  25.0% 75.0%
99 618000 TRANSFER FROM CURBSIDE 3 (14,102) $ (3,526) 25.0% 75.0%
100 TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 673,423 § 168,356  25.0% 75.0%
101 600010 CAPITAL TRANSFER $ - S -




Agenda Request — Jasper County BOC
Department: Board of Commissioners
Date: November 1, 2021

Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings As Needed

Summary:

Schedule work sessions and called meetings as needed.

Background:

Cost:

Recommended Motion:

Board Discretion



